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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC. REPORT
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

ABOUT Us

International Entertainment Holdings Limited {the Companyj is an Intemdtiond holding group majority owned
by Providence Equity Fartners. The principnal activity of the Company s 1o hold companies that cany out
complamentary activities acrass the value chain of live entertainment and theatrerelaled activity, prinipally
in the UK, USA, ardd Continentat Erope [the Group). The Group considers that these markets have significant
potantial for growih and forms the basis for the Group's strategy of further growth and expansion.

The Comptny's main hotding is The Armbassador Theatre Group Limited (ATG). ATG s o global leader in live
entertainment and is o fully integrated operator across the entire live entertainment volue chain, with activities
in venue operakions, ticketing, marketing services and content production. ATG operates in Germany througn
its subssicdiary Mehrl-BB Entertairment GmbH {Mehrl-BB}, which was formed by the merger of the Merr! Group
{acquired in May 2018] with the B8 Entertainment Group of companies [acquired in May 2015}

OVERVIEW ON BUSINESS OPERATIONS

ATG is Focused on proviging a high level of service to two groups of customers; producers and audience
members. By making the end-to-end “customes journey” of our audience top prority, we will ensure that our
venues are the best stages for the highest gquality content developead by bolh our ownin-house as well as 34
party producsrs,

Venue Operations

The oim of our venue operations division s 1o provide a great service to both our producers and our avdisence
members. We genercaie revenues from renting our venues to peoductions os welt as seling food ond

beverages o our audience members.

Over the kis! financial year, to help mitigale the impact of COViD-17, the Group's capild expenditure hos
been rephased ond prigdtized on essential maintenance. However, as we move towards the easing of
government restriictions and re-opening of venues, investment inimproving the guality of venues 10 enhance
qur custormers’ theatte-going experience will resume. Many of the Group's vanues are histone buildings
which htve an important significance in their local areas. Invastment in the maintenonce of these buildings
is centrad to the Group's custodionship of them for the benefits of futre generations of audiences. The
develocpment and improvement of these vaenues to meet the needs and expeclations of today's audiences
and producers are equally important,

In the UK, the Group owns and operates some of the mast igonic venues with 10 in London and 21 more
acrass the country, The Group operates 15 thaalres in the USA, Including two Broadway venues [the Lyric
and the Hudson), and 13 theatres in other US gities, The Group also operates five venues in Gemany s part
of the Mehrl-BB Entertainment Group.

Ticketing

The Group operates the largest theatre ticketing business in the UK and sells the madijority of tickets to shows

in ils venues through its own ticketing businesses,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEX PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Content Production

A key dralegy of the Group's Content Production division i to find, secure, and produce high-quality shows
for both ATG and third-party venves. The Group develops and produces new content in addition o co-
producing, investing in and presenting content from independent producers,

Marksling

Fhe Group through its subsidiary companies of AKA Group, headquarlered in London and BB Group, head-
quartered in Mannheim, Germany. is able 1o offer a wide range of marketing services, which ore in-line and
complementary to the Group™s overgll stategy. AKA, a global enterdainment marketing and medio
advartising agency far ihe live entedainment. arts and cultural industries has offices in London, Manchester,
New York and Ausiralia. AKA has continued to support the Group's shrategy of developing independent yet
complementary business lines to provide a fubsearvice experience to clents wilhin the theatre ond live
entertainment industry. Furthermare, AKA has seen its business cffering extend further afisld with clients not
direclly inked to the live entertainment indusly, such as museums, gallerias, gardens and zoological centres,

Alongside its production services, Mehr-BB Group, vig its subsidiary ESMS, provides marketing services for live

entertainment productions in German-speacking Europe.
REVIEW OF FY21

The Group's operations were significantly disrupted in FY21 due 1o the COVID-19 Pandemic. All juisdictions in
which the Group operates had social distancing reshictions which requied the closare of all its venues.
Throughout the year. the Group has been focused on conserving cash fhrough cost restructuring ond supplier
negotiations as wel as implementfing availoble govemment support, in the fom of furlough schemes, tax
payrent deferols, business rates refief and grants.

The Group has renagatiated its covenants with is lenders ond extended the maturity of its serior loans to 2025,
The Group alse roised additional funds from a new minority investor, Amplify Capital Investment Pte. Lid, which
is ownead by Silvercke Partners.

The Group has postponed the magjorily of its programming into the fulure and as o result, has retdined a high
proportion of the balance of advances sales of lickets sold pre-COVID-19 shut down.

The loss before tax for the period was £147.1 mition {2020: £33.9 million]. Current year and prior year losses ore
atiributable to the impact of COVID-19 on the Group.

Campisiido: loamemal [en



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

KEY PERFORMANCE INDIC ATORS {KPIs)

" Financlal T
Revenue ) Operaling loss
£41.6m | {£94.6m)
. (2020 £2.2m operating
(2020; £476.7m) profit

T a - N ————

Non-financial KPis;

Due o the closure of venues throughaout FY21, 1he non-financial KPis vsually used to monitor the business

have not been considered by management, with focus instead on cash management and cost reduction.
Financial KPis:

- Revenua of £4).4m decreased ?1% from 2020 as COVID-1? forced the closure of ol of the Group's
venuas for the Rl year. Flease refar to note 3 for geographical analysis of revenue.,

- The operating loss of £24.6m results from the reduction inreverve, offset by lower cost of sales and

action taken by management to reduce operaling expenses.

FINANCIAL POSITION AND CASH FLOW

The position of the Group at the pericd-end is set out in the conselidated statement of financial position on
pages 40 and 41, the consalidated statement of cash flows on page 44 and in the related notes on pages 45
to 8%,

- Cash from operating aclivities was a net cash outilow of £108.5 milion {2020: inflow of £62.2 milion). This
reflects the impact of COVID-19 on the year's rading, with an operating loss of £94.6 million {2020
operaling profit £2.2 milion) and negative net working copital cash flow of £43.5 milfion [2020; positive
E10.7 million).

- mwesting cash flows include £14.8 million [2020: £54.1 milfion} of copital axpenditure. Capital expenditure
was minimized in the year to preserve cash. This was offset by £1.4 milion {2020; £1.9 milion) net

recoupment in show investments in the period.

- HNet debt, including finance leqse Rabiities, is consistent with prior yaar at £544. Imilion {2020: £554.2
milionj. New sharetolder loons of £135.0 milion were rased. offset by repayment of £85.5 million of bank
icans and £11.1 miflion of finance lease repayments. Closing cash was £185.4 milion. up kom £13%.1 miflion
at March 2020, and inciuded a £2.4 millon escrow balonce (2020; £8.8 million).

- New shares were issued during 1he year, raising £151.3 million,

3
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT [confinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Leverage and fiquidity

The Group agreed with its lenders temporary amendments to the EBITDA calculglion used 1o fest its leverage
covenant, which fake inlo account the impact of reduced rading. Undor this omended agreement the
Group complied with its met leverage covenont trwoughout the pericd.

The net leverage covenant specifically focuses on the draown senior dett of the Group so excludes
sharehalder loans and finance lease kabiities (refer to note 19].

The cash balance wsed for leverage covenant testing excludes the cosh balance held by subsidiaries outside
of the banking group of £65.8m at 27 sarch 2021 [2020: Nil).

Net debt for covenanl purposes at 27 March 2021 was £310.3 milion {£358.0 milion of senior debt phus £69.4
million of revolving credit faciily nel of cash [excluding escrow) of £117.1 milion). This was £13.0 milion higher
than the prior yaar ending balance of £297.3 million.

Cuash As af 27 March 2021, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of £185.4 million [2020:
£13%.1 million). includng escrow accounts which are held for use primarily In connection

with specific produchtions. The Group aiso had additional available revolving facilities of
£5.6 milion {2020: £5.6 milion), The cash balance increased by £46.4 milien in the period,
while freely available cosh increased by £52.7 million.

£€m For the 52 week
period ended

27 Mmarch 2021

Operating cash lows {108.5)
Investing cash flows {13.3)
Financing cash flows 170.2
Net cash flows 434
Impact of fareign exchange 249
Movement in cash bolance 454

4
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERICD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Bomowings  The Group has total available bank fadilities of £433.0 million, of which £5.4 miillion remains

undrawn af the penod end.

The senior debl Is secured by o debentura aver the majority of the assets of the Group.
The senicr facilities agreemsnt clse requires the Group 1o comply with certain covenants,

Asat 27 March 2021, it Group was in compliance with its cavenants.

The Group alsa has Ieans from its sharehoiders tetolfling £13%.2m, including accrued interest
(2020 ENil}. Interast on shareholder loans is non-cash paying and accrues ot fixed rates
ranging berwaen 4.0% and 10.0%.

The Group has a finance lease creditor of £166.1 million (2020: £177.2 mition).

The maturity of the deb! Is shown In notes 19, 20 and 28 to the financial statemends,

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Subsequert to the period end. the Group completad the acquisiion of Nederander Dafreit LLC and
Braadwrry San Francisco LLC for total consideration of £173.2 million. This acquisition adds two theatres in Sah

Francisco and fhree in Detroit fo the Group's porffolio of owned and operated venues.

Subsequenl to the pericd end the Group received €5.4 million of COVID-1? related govarmment granl income
from the German govemmenl,

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

The strong fundomentals that underpin the theatrical industry combined with the quality of ouwr porifolio of
venues confribute to the Directors' confidence in the long term growth of the business in future years. In order
to withstand the curent cholenges of COVID-19, the Group will continue to judiciously monitor its cost base
and preserve and protect s Iquldity position whilst ensuring that we are adequately prepared for G speedy
return o operdhons,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORTY (conlinved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

CORPORATE AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

The Group recognises the impontance of its environmental responsibilities, menitors its impact on the
anvikonment, and designs and implements oppropriate policies to minimise any damage that might be

causad by the Group's activities.

The Gioup seeks fo reduce the environmentol impact of its operalions through responsible resource
procurement ang consistently thrives to efiminate waste with our supply chain portners. Specifically, we are
driving efficient energy procurement, diverting all of our waste from landfill and where possible, instaling
energy efficient systems in our venues. As an organisatian aur environmental impact 8 a key pillar of cur
averarching Corporate Social Responsibility strateqgy.

The closure of the Group's venues throughout the year caused the magiority of its ongoing environmental
irmpact initiatives to be paused. Howevaer, the clasure of all vanues and offices has in itself reduced the Group’s

environmantalimoact,
Greenhouse Gas Reporling

The Group is required by the Companies Act 2006, Reguiations 2013 10 measure and reports its direct and

inclirect UK greenhouse gas emissions,

Direct greenhouse gas emissions are from sources that are owned or controlied by the Group. indirect
greenhouse gas emissions are from sources owned or controlled by other entities but are a cansequence of

the activities of the Group.

The methodology used to calculate emissions 1§ based on the Greenhouse Gas Protocol’s corporate
Accounting ond Reporting Standard approach. The Uk gavemmen! conversian factor guidance [YDEFRA")
was ysed to caiculate emission factors.

Greanhouse gas reporting is split between three categories. The explanations for these are as follows;

Scope 1: Direct emissions confrolled by the Group. This Includes gas and ol used for heating as well as emissions

from company cars {both owned and leosed).
Scape 2 Inditect emissions exclusivetly composed of purchased elechticity within the Group.

Scope 3 Indirect emissions which occur at sourges which dre not owned aor confrolled by the Group ond
which are not classed s scope 2 emissions. This includes emissions from rental vehicles where the Group

purchased the fuel.

i3
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Absolute UK carbon emissions (fonnes of COy Year ended 27 March 2021
Scops | T 2,035.86
Scope 2 25687
Scope 3 152
| 3,000.45
20N

UK corbon intensity
Tonnes of CO; per £'000 of revenue ) 0.4
Tonnes of CO: per employee 489

OUR PEOPLE

Number of employeas at 27 March 2021 Women Men Total
Directors of the company v 4 5
Other senior management 20 43 63
Employees 2,205 1,791 3.994

The Group complies with all relevant fegisiction including those specificolly targeted at preventing
discrimination. Such principles are embedded through the organisation by the requisite policies. The Group
& commitied to ensuring the health, safely and welfare of ils employees as far a5 s reasonably practicable.
The Group seeks 1o ensure that sialutory deties are met at all imes and that it operates elfective health and
safety management policies ond procedures,

The Group's policy is 1o consull and discuss with employees, through unions, staff councils. meetings and
company-wide surveys, matters likely to alfect employees’ interests. Infarmation on matters of concem to
employees i given through information bultetine and reports which seek 1o achieve a common awarenass on

the part of afl employees of the financial and economic factors affecting the Group's performance.

The Group continues 1o run its “Be o Star” and “Be a Star Manager” training programmes, facusing on Front of
House and Box Office stoff from when they join the Group, developing their skills to improve customer
experience, and further along the line, the key aspects of people management. The Group also runs o two
year “Rising Star” programme for some of our highest potential junior staff as well as a leadership course for
sehior mandagers “lLeading Lights™. In FY20, we launched our sixth cohort of Rising Skars, and a third Ledding
Ligthts class.

The Group's palicy is to recruit disabled warkers for those vacancies that they are abie to fil. All necessary
assistance with initlal training courses is given. Oncea employed. a career plan is developed so Qs to ensure

suitable opporturities for each disabled person. Arrangements ore made, wherever pessibie, for refraining

14
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

ampioyess who become disabied. 1o enable them to perform work identified as appropriate to their optitudes
and abllities.

We continus to support internal engagement initiatives such as International Women's Day. Pride and Mental
Health Awaraness weaek, with more people bacoming involved in all geographies.

Soclkal and Communily Involvement

The Group recognises that regional theotres, both in the UK and USA, are rooted in the heart of thelr local

communities.

Many of the UK regional theatres have Cregtive Learning departments which take g leading role in
contributing to the social cohesion of their communities in parinership with charities, usts ang organisations
nationwide, including several local autharities and further education partners. Over the course of o year,
Craative Leaming can boast more than 70,000 participants of dif ages and abifities throughaut the UK.

People of a wide variety of ages and abilifies participate in the Group's Creative Learning aclivities. Oflen
nspired by the productions at venues, these can include workshops with visiting companies, backstage tours
and pre-show talks, and ako Youth Theotres, summer schools and classes for adubis. in addition to this, many

regicnal venuas are usad for several waeks a year by locol amateur production companies.

On Broadway, the Lyric Theatre hosts an autism friendly performance of Harry Folter and the Cursed Child,
gnlightening more than Y00 childran and adults who are diagnosed with an autism spectium disorder or other
sensitivity issues gnd their familes and friends. Partnering with Theatre Development Fund (TDF), sight
adjustments to the production have been made so that the show s presented in a fiendly. supportive
ervircnmert, The Hudson Theake hosts the 52nd St Project at a performance of David Byme's American
Uopia. Founded in 1981, the $2nd Street Project s a communily-based arls organisation. with a mission to
bring togetner kids fram Hell's Kitchen in Manhattan with thegtre protessiongls 1o create odgindl theatre
offered free 1o the general public. Teenagers from the organisation’s song wiiting growd enjoyed the show
and were delightedly surprised by a "Meet & Greet” with David and the enfire bond after the performonce.
The evening alo served as a fundraiser for the Project where maoney raised would support the Beloved Non-

Profit Organization.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT (conlinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

CAUTIONARY STATEMENFT

The Strategic Report has been prepored solely fo provide information to shareholders o assess how the
directors have performed their duty to promote the success of the Group. The repart contains certain forword-
looking statements, which are made by the directors in good faith based on the infarmation available to them:
at the time that the report waos signad, but are subject to the inherent uncertainties vnderying ony forward-
locking information and as such should be treated with caution.

APPROVAL

This report was approved and authonised for issue by the Board of Drectors on 21 July 2021 and signed on ils

bendalf k"
M‘N__/‘

John Gldcaom
Director

16

Canritlidte ksl fira



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued )
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

8172 Statement

STATEMENT BY YHE DIRECTORS IN PERFORMANCE OF THEIR STATUTORY DUTIES IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION
172(1) COMPANIES ACT 2004

The Board of Directors of Intermnational Entertainment Holdings Limited (“IEH") consider, both individually and
together, that they have acted In the way they consider, in good faith, would be most kkely to promote the
success of the Comparny for the benefit of its stakeholders as a whaie {having regard fo the stakeholders and
miatters set oul in section 172(1}) [o-f) of the Act} in the decisions taken during the period ended 27 March
2021,

$172{1) A “The likely consequence of any decision In the long term”
The Directors have taken the decision they believe best support IEH's strategic ombitions. More information
can be found under ‘futuwre Developments’ on page 5

$172(1) B "The Interast of the company's employees™
The Directors recognise that IEH employees are fundamental and core 1o our busingss and the delivery of our

striotegic ambitions, More information can be found under *'Our People’ onpage 14.

5172(1) C "The need to foster the company's business relationships with suppliers, customers ond others™
IEH stakeholders are customers, produceas, supplian, emplayses, sharehalders and lenders and the Board
recognises the need to regularly review the identity of ifs stakeholders as it makes decisions. The Board

promates accountabiity and transparency wilk all stakeholders.

Tha Company's fundamental belief in promoting the public good is demonskated and supported by owr
Senior Leadenhip's active engagement across industry bodies and our stakaholder community,

The Group has recently infroduced new customer engagement survays which will determine the Net Promater
Score (NPS] of the Group — this process is run by an extemadl company to ensure independence. NP3
performance is being reportad to the Board on a monthly basis, Althaugh this is a new process, the findings
are being usad to improve customer angagement with knowledge being shored across all of our business,

An annudl employee ‘Compony Day' delivered in London provides Q brigfing on the Company’s
peformonce and allows individuals to raise questions and concems. The Group maonitors its emplovea's
commitment 1o its guiding framework by asking members of senior management to submit an annual
daclaration confirming whether they have complied with the Group's Code of Conduct, if any employee
wishes to highight any potential breaches to the Code of Conduct, they can contagt the independent
whistieblowing services provider and o formal inveastigation fallows, wilh anonymous reporting to the Audit
Committee. Annudt employee engagement surveys are performed o highlight areas requiing improvement
in communication of the Group's purpcse. The Board considers the results of all employee sngagement
surveys o good parometer of the workforce's confidence in the Group's strategic direction, optimism tor the
fulure and career oppartunities,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT {continued )
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

The Group produces Gender Pay Reporting and Fayment Practices and Performance Reporting, both of
which are published extermnally, The additional anolysis required to conduct this reporting has highlighted some
areas in which the Group needs to improve. The Group welcomes these changes as it seeks to constantly
improve in its engagement with all stakeholders.

$172{1) D “The Impact of the company's operalions on the communily and the environment™
The Directors recognise the imporlance of its environmontal responsibilities. More details can be found under

‘Enwironmenial matters’ onpage 13,

5172(1) E “The dasirability of the compaony maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct”™
IEH has zero tolerance for modern slavery, bribery and other forms of comuption. We implemend ond enforce
aeffective systerns to counter modem slavery, bribery and coruption and have infernal policies in place to
educdals our employeeas about how to recognise and deal with these issues to as o ersure compliance with
lerws,

Wae remain committed to combatting moderr stavery, bribery and comuption by:
- Audliting our supply chains;
Training our staff to recognise these issues;

- Monitoring potential sk across our business.

We have a dedicated whislleblowing service for our employees fo report misconduct or unethicat practices
and have a policy which clearly sets out how members of staff can raise any concerns which they may have.
Details of our code of conduct and modern slavery can be found on the ATG welsite;

hHps/ fwww, 0t g co.uk/corporate-information

htbps:f fwwow, atg.co.ukfatg-modern-siayeny-and-human-trafticking-stalemsent

$172(1) F “The need Yo act fairly as between members of the company™
At every Board meetling the Direclors review. wilth the management team, the progress against srategic
priorities and the changing shape of the business porifolio.

This collaborative approoch by the Board, together with the Board's approval of the company strategy, helps
it to pramote the long-term success of the Group. 8oard decisions are taken against the backdrop of what it
considers to be in the best interes! ¢f the long-term financial success of the company and its stakeholders,
including shareholders, empiayass, the community ond environment, ous suppliers and customers,

F. |



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORY {(continved )
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Principal declsions - engaging with stakeholders

As part of the decision making process for the Board, it continues fo have regard for the impaoct of its decisions
on the Group's stokehoiders as required under section 172 of the Companies Act 2006, The Board takes its
responsibility towards stokeholders seriously and strives to build ond maintain productive reiationships with

each of them.
We outline here how we engage with our stokehcelders to drive outcomes.
1. Employess

The Group’s longderm success is predicated on the commitment and condibution of its workforce.

Engagement with ouwr employees is essential to meet our strategic goals,

During this year, the Board has had to take the difficult decision to furlowugh the maijority of the Group's staft
throughout the COVID-19 Pandemic. The use of Govemment Job Retention Schemes in the UK and Germany
has cllowed the Group to avoid, reduce or mitigate redundancies which might otherwise have beenrequired.

Resources have been made availobie to employees to support their mental heaith and wellbeing during this
time, The Group has olso implemanted regular pulse surveys, CEC breakfasts and newsietters to ensure that

employees remain engaged throughout this tme.
2. Customers

Customers are central to the success of the Group and engagement with our customers allows the Group to

understand their requirements and drive inttiatives that seek to consistently improve the customer experience.

During the period in which tha venues have bean closad, the Group has sought to use this tirma to plan for re-
opening of ow venues, In order 1o ensure thot customers feel canfident in retuming to our venues, the Group
has implementad regular customer surveys ta better understand what COVID-19 secure maasures customers
are expecting 1o see. The feedback from our customers has been invaluabie in delermining our COVID-19

response.

Like marny busingsses, once COVID-19 resulted in the lockdown of our venues, the Group haed @ large volume
of customer requests to manage. To aid our employees and provide befter customer service, the Group
implemented a new customer service technology solution ond a second customer service call cenfre to

manage the influx of customer queries in an efficient and timely manner.
3 Supphers

The Group has @ number of lang-term supplier partnerships which dare on Impodant part of our business
including in relation to venue operations and [T infrastructure,

The Group engages with its supply chain through a variety of methods including vio dedicated relationship
managers, a central procurernent function and mest the buyer events. The Group recegnises the value of its
supply chain partrers and the coliaborotive approach tha Group has taken with its suppliers allowad the
Group to respand proactively and promptly to the impact of COVID-19.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT {continued )
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Dwing 2020, as part of the inttiatives 1o preserve liquidity, Ihe Group worked with suppliers to adjust its supply

needs.
4. Conlent Partners

Our content partners are key o delivering a successhul customer experience.  Throughout the COVYID-1%
Pandemic it has been imperalive thal we engoge wilth our content partners 1o ensure that there is a plan for
how we deal with the re-scheduling and cancellaton of shaws 1t our venues. We have worked in conjunclion
with our parners 1o ensure Ihal this has besn undertaken in g manner which preserves the customer
relationship. The clase working relationship with our partners has enabled us to plan for the re-opening of our
venues with a strong content pipefne due to the continued support from our content partners.

5. Communilies and the Environment

The Group understands that | has an impact on communifies and we engage with them in a number of
different ways including: local outreach programmes, creative learning and community porinerships amangs!
others. As well as having a ceniral crealive cutreach function, each of our venues also has its own infliatives
for community engagement, Due to owr geographic spread qcrass the regions of the UK, North America and
Germany. the Group is able to respond to the specific needs and opportunities in each area.

We strive to reduce the environmental impact of our operations, and those of our supply chain partners,
through the responsible sourcing of resources. Key inifiatives include driving sustoinable energy procurement,
instaling more energy efficient systems in our venues wheraver possible, and diverting oll waste from Tandfill

é. Sharehclders

The Group is in reguiar diciogue with its sharehoidars. The Group's shareholders are represented on the Board
and meet regularly throughout the year 1o discuss the key decisions 1o be made by the Group.

The close working relationship with the Group's shareholders has enabled the business to focus on key strategic
objectives which have been set by the Board and focus on long-term cpportunities that meet the
raquirements of the sharehclders.

7. Financial Institutions

The Group regularly rmeets with its bonks. There is an annual presentation of the Group's performance, regular
interim reporfing and presentation of the Groug®s budget. This has enabied the Group to forge strong relations
with its bankers and given them q beiter understanding of the Group's business and its performance.

A good relationship with the Group's bankers has enabled the Group to negotiate a temporary odjusiment
te certain finoncial covenants during the period when the Group's venues have had to be closed due to the
COVID-19 restrictions.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued )
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Principal decisicns made

We outhne hare some of the principal decisions made by the Group and how the directors have considered

various stakeholders,
1. COVID-19 Measures

The fingt month [March] of Fr20 was a pediod of considerable uncertainty for ali businesses, including ours,
which warranted G response to the unprecedentad impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. We recognised
quickly that there were Bkely 1o be significant implications of this pandemic on ourselves, as well as all other

location based entertainment businesses, Our marketing services business was abo impacted as many of ils
clients are theatricat or location enterfainment businesses, like museurns and galleries. By 17 March 2020, we
had closed all of owr venues worldwide, in order to protect show casts and crew members, our employees

and visitors. Since then, we have diligently followed all government guidetines in each relevant geography.
In order to preserve liquidity and mitigate the impac! of the fixed cost base during the pandsamic, the Directors
of the Group have taken the following measuras:

- created a Businass Condinuity Committes. which has been focused on crisis maonagement and key

decision making;
- ongoing engogement with alf caur stakeholders, including ow sharehelders and lenders:

- implementation of bi-weekly cash flow forecasts t manage liquidity ot o granular level throughout the
Group;

- robust recpening scenanc modelling to drive decision making;
- proactive management of rescheduling shows to fuiure dates to minimize the leve! of show canceliations;

- asignificant element of the Group's cost base ralates to wages and salaries. Where possible, and subject
to locol regulations, staffing tevels and hours worked have been reduced. Empioyees, including senior
management and directors, have alse undertaken salary sacrifices, Govemment support both in the UK
in the form of the Job Retention Scheme and in Garmany in the form of the Kurzarbeit program has been
utlised to oifset staffing cosls 1hat continue 160 be Incured:

- capital expenditure has been rephased and priontized on essental maintenance; ard

- acfions have been taken 1o deler or permanently reduce payments of fixed costs and unpoid variable
costs from the pre-pandemic period. including agreements with Government fiscal authortties on certain

tax poyments,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued )
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

whilst the Board has made decisions to deat with he immediate impact of the COVID-19 pandemic it has
also made thase decisions wilth regards to the Group's longer termn strategic objectives, For example, daspite
imits on cash reserves and initiatives to preserve liquidity, the Group has continued to invest in COVID- 19
secure measures that will nead to be implemented for re-opening our venues. Invesiment in key strategic
indtiatives such as T and cyber security hove continued,

2. nvestment in digital capabilities fo drive pre-show and invenue F&B

As a custormer facing busness it is important to continue to evolve to iIMmprove customer expenence. The
members of the Board ware satisfiad thaot the development and roll-out of a new digital foad and beverage
sales charnet was an important step for the Cornpany to toke to immprove the user expenence for our
customers. The abilily 10 order food and beverage on-ine prior o and during your visit would reduce queuves
in the venue and mitigate crowding, reducing the risk of COYIB-1? infection.

3. vestment in building CAPEX

Despite our inttiatives 1o preserve liguidity during the period when our venues have been closad, the Board
has aso considered A prudent to invest in owr buildings where we con. Undertaking key repairs and
erhancements, whilst our venuos have been closed has enabled us 10 ensure thal we do nol have to
postponeg or interrupt shows to carry out the works. A number of these projects ensure that we provide g better

experignce for our customers and content partners so that they remain safeguarded for the future,
4. Investing in diversity and nclusion

Despite our venues being closed, the Board has considered It key 10 continue to foous on diversity and
inclusion both on and off the stage. Having taken into account previous work undertaken by the Diversity
Working Group, the Board has considered it importan to expand vpon the iniliclives already undertaken.
improving the divensity of voices within fhe Group wil enhance the longer terrn success of the Group as o

whole,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES

Anthany Ball, Non-Executive Director

Anthony Ball served as Chairman of Internotional Entedtainment Holdings Limited frarm December 2014 to April
2021 ond remains on the board as a non-executive director. He has been a senior gdvisor of Providence Equity
Partners since 201 3. He has had < long and sucgessful cargerin the media and entertainment industies in the
UK and internalionally, as chairman of Kabel Deutschiond from 2005 fo 2013 and as CEO of BSkyB. tha largest
pery-TV brogdcaster in Europe, Prior to this, he was the CEQ of the News Comporation/Liberty Madia joint
venture, Fox/Liberly Nohworks, which included the FX Networks, Fox Sports Nel ang over 20 regional sports
channets throughou! the U.S. He & a non-executive director of BT Group and chairman of Portland
Communications, Anthony received a MBA from Kingston University and hos been awarded honorary

doctorates from both Middlesex University and Kingston University.
Mark Carnell, Chlef Executive Oficer

mMark Cormell was appointed Group CEQ of the Armbassador Theatre Group I May 2014, Pricr o this he was
Managing Director of Sotheby's Burope and preceding thot, spent 10 yvears at LvMH, including President and
Chief Execulive Officer of Moel Hannessy USA and Chief Executive Officer of Kug Champagne, Mark has
vast experence in managing large organisations, as well as successfully leading consumer-orientatad brands
in the UK, Europe and the LSA,

Stephen Evans, Non-Executive Director, Silver Lake Parthers

Stephen Evans joined Silver Lake in 2008 and is @ Managing Director. Mr. Evans serves on the board of
Ambassador Thealre Group {ATG], Endeavor and TEG. He is a member of the audit commitlees of City
Football Group and UFC. He aiso previously served on the boards of Ancestry.com and Serena Software, Inc.
Prior to joining Silver Lake, Mr. Evans was a Principol ot Cognetas, o pan-Buropean private equity firm, where
he focused on transactions across business and informaiion services. Previously, Mr. Evans spent five years at
8ain & Company. based both in Europe ond the US., including two years in 8ain's private equity group. He is
a member of he executive board of the EB Research Foundation, which is desdicated to finding o cure for
fpidermolysis Bullosa, o rare children's disaase. Mr. Evans holds an MA. ang an M.Phil from Cambridge
Universily, and an M.B.A. from Horvard Business 3¢hool,

David Leigh, Non-Execulive Director

Davidl Leigh joined the International Entertainrent Holckngs Limited booard a5 o non-executive director in
Oclober 2015, He 8 CEO af aAlexander Mann Salutions, a role he has held since Novermnber 2019, Prior to
joining Alexander Mann, David was CES of Study Group, and priar to thal was CEQ of SHL. Pricr to SHL, he was
on the Executive Committee of Groupe Steria, with responsibility for Business Process Outsourcing. David's
earier background was in private equity (iFormation Group, a joint venture between Goldman Sachs, General
Allantic Partners and the Boston Consuiting Group), consulling [McKinsey & Ca) and ow {Herbert Smith).
David has an MA in Social ond Political Sciences from Cambridge University and a post-graducte isgal

quaiification from the College of Law. london.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES {continued)

Alexander Mishanin, Non-Execulive Direclar. Providence Equily Pariners

Alexander Mishenin is o vice prasident based at Providence Equity Partners. Prior 16 joining Providence in 2014,
Kr. Mishenin worked as an analys! in the invastment banking group at L.P. Morgan in London. Mr. Mishenin
received a Masters in Finance and Law from Duisenberg School of finance and o Bachelor of Business

informatics from the Higher School of Economics, Moscow.
lonathan M. Nelson, Executive Chalmyan, Providence Equity Parmers

#r. Nelson was appeinted Choirman of intemnationa| Entericinment Hoidings Limited n April 2021, Mr. Nelson
s execulive chairman and founder of Providence Eguily Partners, the world™s leading private equily firm
focused on media. communications. education and nformation investiments. The fim manages fungs with
$45 billion in cormmmitments and has invested in more than 1/0 companies globally since its incepfion. Mr.
Nelson serves on the board of divectors of Ambassador Theatre Group ond The Chemin Group. He has also
served as @ diractor of numercus other Providence portfolio companies. inciuding Bresnan Communications,
Ercom ple, Huly, Language Line, MotroNet {now ATST Canadal. MLS Media, Univision, VoiceStraam Wirelass
[row T-Mobile US), Wamer Music Groupn, Westem Wireless Comporation [now ATAT Compl} and Yankees
Entertoinment and Sports Nehwork (YES).

ME. Nelson has been a private equily investor for 38 years. He founded Providence in 1%8%.  Previously, he
was a managing director of Naragansett Canlial, inc. which he joined in 1983, At Namagansett Capital, Mr.
Nelson specialized in private equily invesimenis In media. M. Nelson recelved a Master of Business
Administration from the Harvard Business School in 1983 and a Bachelor of Arts from Brown University in 1977,
He is a trustee of Brown Univensity, The Rockefellar University ondg Institute for Advanced Study. He s o member
of the Board of Dean's Advisors ot Harvard Busingss School.

John Oldcom, Chief Fnanclal Officer

John Oldcom was appointed ¢s CFQ of intermationat Entertainment Haldings Limited on 1 July 2021, Prior to
this John spent ihree years as the Group CFC of Argent Foods, g £750m tumover conglomerate of food-related
business. At Argent he oversaw ralationships with lendeis and othar key stakeholders, played a key role in the
group navigating succeassfully through the pandemic, ond led four debt raises / refinancings. and significant
Comporgte angd M&A aclivity, Prior to joining Argent in 2018, John spent 25 years working in prafessionat
practice with Arthur Andersen, Deloitte and, latterly, KPMG, the last 146 yvears as a pariner. He co<ed the
creation and rapid groewth of a dedicoted, muiti-discipinary, private equity practice serving gloical PE clents
and their portfolic companies across Europe, typically in a last-paced MEA environment.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES {(confinued}

George Osborne, Non-Executive Director

George Osborne joined the board of IEH as a nan-executive director in April 202). He & g pariner at Robey
Warshaw LLP, Prior to his cumant roles, George was an MP for sixtean years, the Chancellor of the Exchequer
[2010-201 &} and First Secretary of State {2015-2014], and edited the London Evening Standard from 2017-2020.
George i chalr of the not-for-prafit Northern Powerhouse Partnership ond o Lecturer at Stanford Urnversity,
Cualiformia. In 201 4 he was magie ¢ Companion of Honaur by Her Majasty the Queen.

Robert Sudo, Non-Execulive Director, Frovidence Equity Partners

Robert Sudo is a managing director at Providence Equity Partners. He is afso a director of Bité, Closer Stil media,
HSE24, Masmovil and LaCentrale, Prior to joining Providence Equity Parlners in 2004, Robert worked o5 an
analyst for Goldman Sachs in msrgers and acquisitions and corporale finance, He received a Diploma in
Business Administration from HHL Leipzig Graduate School of Management,

Andrew Tisdole, Non-Execulive Director, Frovidence Equllty Pariners

Andrew Trdale 5 g Senior Managing Director and Co-Head of Europe at Providence Equity Pariners. He i
aliso a Director of Chime Communication, Closer Still Media, HSE24, TES Global and Noded. Prior to joining
Providence Equity Partners in 2008, Andrew was global co-head of the media and communications group
and a member of Morgan Sianiey's management coemmittee for investrent banking. Andrew received a
Master of Business Adminisiration from the University of North Carcling ot Chapel Hil and a Bachelor of Arts
from Vanderbilt University. He currently serves an the Space Innovalion Council ot the Califomia ingtitute of
Technology and. the Board of Advisors for the Yale Schogl of Drama, and Vonderbilt University’s College of
Arts and Sciences.

Micho#! Vervisch, Non-Execulive Director, Providence Equity Partners

mMichaét Vervisch is a managing director gt Providence Equity Pariners. He is aiso a director of Noded. Mr
vervisch criginally joined Providenca in 2014, In the post he worked as a principal ot Clayton Dubilier & Rice,
as on associate director at Ik Investment Fartners and as on associate ot McKinsey & Campany. Mr. Vervisch
received a Master of Business Administration from Harvard Busingss School and holds a Master of Science in
Electrical Engineering and a Master of Science in Applied Economics from the Katholieke Universiteit Leuven
in Belgium,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

The directors present their report and the audited financial stalements for the period ended 27 March 2021.
The directors consider the annual reporl and financial statements o comply substantially with all aspects of
the "Guidelines for Disclosure and Transparency in Private Equity™.

DIRECTORS

The directors who served during the pericd and to the date of signing the financial statements {except «
noted) were,

Anthony Ball

Mark Comell

Stephen Evans Appointed & October 2020
Sinisa Krnic Resigned & Oclober 2020
David Leigh

Alexander Mishenin Appointed & October 2020

Jonathan Nelson Appointed 27 Aprit 2021
John Oidcomn Appointed 1 July 2021
George QOsborne Appointed 27 Apri! 2021
Robert Sudo

Shankce Teo Rasigned 1 July 2021

Andrew lisdale

mMichael Vervisch Appointed 6 Qclober 2020

The biographies of the cument directors are presented on page 23 10 25.

The Group is majonty owned by Providence Equity Partners through its investment funds, Providence Equity
Partners VIl-A LP and Providence VH Global Holdings LP. Pravidence Equity Parlners is a global alternative
investment firm esligblished in 1989 focused on education, media, communications. and information
investments. The fim's private equity platform speciaiises in sector-focused buyout transactions and growth

capital investments. Frovidence Equity Partners made its investmant in the Group through IE Luxco S.érl
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

DIRECTORS' INDEMNITIES

The Company has made qualifying third-party indemnity provisions for the beneft of its directors which were

made during the perod and remain in force at the date of this report,

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Ioss far the period ofter taxation amounted to £139.0 milion [2020: £25.9 million).

No dividends have been paid during the Current period (2020; ENi). No dividends ore proposed inraspect 1o
Ihe current period.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT {ccntinved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

GOING CONCERN BASIS

As at the date of approvail of these financial statements, the impact of COVID-1? on the Group's frading
continues to be assessed and is subject 1o rapidly changing extemal factors, including evolving government
responses to control the spread of the vinus and ongoing changes in customer senfiment towards attending

ive entertainment events.

Due to the measures token by govemments warlawide to confral the COVID-19 outbreck, the Wve
entertaginment industry came to a standstil from the secand half of March 2020, with dll our venues being

closed for operations.

Prior to mid-March 2020, the Group had fraded well with o programming schedule of highly successtut shows
supporling strong operational performance across of of its leritories. We were in a strong financial position
with alt covenants under the terms of our loans being met. Untfortunataly, the closurs of our venues has resulted
in a sharp drop in tumoaver, Qur marketing services busmneassas are Also experencing a drop in turnover as many
of our customers are in ihe ive entertainment and cullural & heritage sectors [museurns, galleries, zoos); all of
which have had reshictions on their operations during COVID-19. Whilst there has been a corrasponding
reduction in varable cosjs as a resull of the closure of our venues, the Group continues to have to fund ils
fxed costbase.

in order to praserve liguidity and mitigate the impact of the fixed cost base during the pandemic, the Divectors
of tha Group have taken anumber of measures os set out on page 21 of this report.

The Group has net curent liabilities of £63.4 miliion [2020; £168.7 million] and net assets of £51.1 milion (2020:
£49.0 milion} af the pesiod-end date. Net currert fabilities include advanced licket sales of £113.8 milion
(2020: £142.4 million). These represant ticket sales for shows that have yel o malure, with @ porlion of this
amouni due to flow 1o the Group. Excluding advance ticket sales and nontefundable granis, the Group has
liabilities due within ong year of £144.2 million (2020: £187.0 milion} which are exceeded by current assels of
£227.7 milkon, {2020: £204.5 milion}.

The Group holds cash reserves, excluding required escrow accounts. inlts barnk accounts of £182.% milion as
at the reporting date. In addition, the Group has received an equity commitment from its shareholders, which
is presently undrawn.

The Group operates and robusl, bi-weekly cash and cash flow forecasting process covering the pericd to 31
December 2022.

Sersitivitias are run fo reflect cifferent scenarios for when thaatres might or wil be able to re-open inthe months
following the dote of the approval of these finoncial stiatements. This is done to identify risks to iquidity ond
covenant compliance ond enable management to formulate appropriate and timely mitigation strotegies.

These sensitivitias include severe, but plousible, downside scenarios.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

Boased on these forecasts and oifher factors which may impact the Group's future liquidity position, the

Directors hove concluded that if is appropriate to prepore the financial statements on a going concem basis,
The reasons for this are as foliows:

- The Group hoids £433.0 milion of committed facilities which are subject to net leverage ond liguidity
covenants. There is a reduced risk of defaulf on the net leverage covenant, due fo a faciity amendment
which allows for an adiustmant to the net leverage covenant whilst theatres are closed by govermments
due to COVID-17 and during an agresd ramp up period post re-opening. The Group is also subject to a
mirimum Iquidity covenant which is forecast to be met for the next 12 months; and

- Adequate liquidity is in place for the next 12 months based on the foressegble scenarios for theatres, in
terms of re-opening dates, palential resfrictions on how our venues <an oparate [i.e. social distancing
requirements], and the: level of demand from audiences. At present, govemmant policy onreopening of
theatrical venues and social distancing reguirements vares across the countries and regions that the

Group operates in.

The Board's confidence in the Group's forecasts, its ability to monage its iquidity requirements, confidence in
the continued support of our shareholders, and the long term potential of the business forms the basis of our

preparation of the financial statements on g going concern basis.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (conlinved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

MATIERS COVERED IN THE STRATEGIC REPORT

Certoin matters {post balance sheet events, future developments, principal risks ond uncertainties ang
employee motters} are discussed within the Strategic Report and incorporated into the Directors’ Report by
reference.

AUDITOR
Each of the persons who is a director at the date of approval of this annuat report confirms that:

- 30 for as tha director s awars, there s no relevont audit information of which the Company's auditor s

vhawars; and

- the director has taken ol the steps that hefshe cught to have taken as a director in order to make
himselffherself aware of any relevant oudit information and to astablish that the Company's quditor is

aware of that information.

This confiwnalion s given and should be interpreted in gccordance with the provisions of 5418 of the
Companies Act 2006.

Deloitte LLP have expressed ther wilingness to continue in office as auditor and a rasoiution to reappeint them
will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

This report was approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 July 2021 and signed on ifs
behaif;

,\/ “

John Oldcorn

Director

Registered oflice
28 5t George Street, Londaon
W15 2FA, United Kingdom
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the finoncicl statements in accordance

with applicable low ond regulations.

Company law requires the directors 1o prepare financial statements for each financiol period. Under that law
the directors have elected to prepuare the financial staterments in accordance with Intemational Financial
Reporting Standards HFRSs) os adopted by the Ewopeon Union, Under company law the directors must not
approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the stote of
aftairg of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period. In preparing thase finoncial
statements, lntermational Accounting Standard 1 requires that directars:

- properly select and apply accounting policies;

- present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable information;

- provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient
to enabie wsers to understand the impact of particular fransactions, other events and conditions on
the entity’s financial position and financiol perfomance; and

- moke an assessment of the Company's abillity (o conlinue s a going concern.

The directors are respansible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to thow and explain
the Company's trarsactions and disclkase with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Company and enable them to enswe that the Bnancial statements camply with the Companies Act 2006.
They are diso responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps

for the prevenfion and detection of fraud and other iregularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenonce and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the Company's website. Ledisiotion in the United Kingdom goveming the preparation and
disserniration of financial statements may ciffer from legisiation in other jurisdictions,

wWe confirm that 1o the best of our knowledge:

- the fnancial statements, prepared in accordance with the relevant financial reporting ramework,
give a hue and fair view of the assels, liabilities, finoncial position and profit o 1ass of the Company
and the underakings includsad in the consolidation token as o whole;
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT {continued)

- the Strategic Report Includes a fair review of the development and perormance of the business and
the pasition of the Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken s o whole,
together with a descrplion of tha prncipal risks and uncertainties that thoy face; and

- the annud! report ond financial stotements, token as o wheole, are fair, balanced and understandable
and pravide Ihe information necessary for shareholders to ossess the Group’s perfornance, business
model and strateqy.

This respansibility statemont was gpproved by the Board of Directors on 21 July 2021 and is signed on its benalf
by:

-~
A/ !‘

John Oldeormn

Diractor
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Report on the qudl of the fnoncial statements

Opinion

In our opinion the fingncial statements of International Entertainment Heldings Limited {the ‘parent company’}

and its subsidiaries {the "group'):

» give a true and {air view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company’s offairs as at 27 March
2021 and of the group's toss for the year then ended;

+ have been properly prepared in accordance with intemational accounting sfandards in conformity with
the requiremnents of the Companies Act 2004; and

+ have bean prepared in accordonce with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the finoncial statements which ¢Omgxise:

» the consolidated statement of comprehensive incomse;

+« ihe consolidated and company statements of financiol position;
+ the consolidated and company statements of changes in equity:
» ihe consolidated statement of cashflows; and

+ thereigted notas | to 33,

The financial reparting framewdrk that haos been opplied in their preparation is applicable law and

international accounting standards in conformily with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006,

Bosis for opinion

We conducted our qudit in accordance with Intfemational Standards on Auditing (UK} [I8As (UK)}) and
applicakle law, Qur responsibiifies under thosa standargs are further described in the auditor's responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statemants section of our report.

We are independent of the group and the parent cCompany in accordance with the ethical requiremenits that
are refevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council's {the
'FRC's'} Ethical Standard, and we have fulliled ow other ethical responsibiities in accordance with thase
raquirements. We beiieve that the audit evidence we have abtained s sufficient and gppropriate to provide

a basis for our opinion.

Concluslons relating to going concem

in auditing the finoncial staternents, we have concluded that the directers’ use of the golng concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements s appropriate,

Qur evaluation of the diroctors’ assessment of the group’s and parent company's abifity to continue to adopt

the going concem basis of aocounting included:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED {continued)

« an assessment of the entilies inoncing fachities including nature of faciities, repayment terms and
covenants;

+ o review of managernent’s forecasts, including challenging management's key assumiptions such os the
recpenng dales of theatres. the ocCcupancy levels, the bose level of operating costs, the cash flow to
achieve re-opening. and the rafund rate on advanced sales;

« an assessmend over the amount of headroom in the forecasts {cash and covenants) on G base case aned
under management's sensitivity analysis of an extended dark period or o reduction in cccupancy rates;
and

e« review aver the modesl used to prepare the forecasts, testing of clerical accuracy of those forecasts and
oyr assessment of the historical aceuracy of forecasts prepared by management.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating ta evenls
ar condglitions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group's and parend
company's ability to continue as a going concemn for a pericd of at least twelve months from when the

finrancial statements are authorised for issue.

Cwr respansibilities and the responsibilitios of the directors with respect to going concem are described in the

retevant sections of this report.

Other infformation

The other infarmation comprises the iformation included in the annual repart, other than the financial
staterments and our auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other infarmation contained
within the annual repart. Our opinion on the finoncial statements does not cover the other information GRag.
excep! to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance

conciusion therecn,

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in deing so. consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financiol stalements or our knowledge obtained n the course of the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materally misstated. i we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent mataricl
misstatermants, we are required 1o determing whether this gives rise 10 o material misstatermant in the financio
statements themselves. I, based on the work we have performed, we conclude thal there is a materiod
misstaternent of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED (continued)

Responsibilfes of directors

As explaned more fully i the directors' respansibilitiss statement. the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial staterments and for being safisfied that they give a true and fair view. ond for such
intermnal control as the directors determing & necessary 1o enable the preparation of fnancidl statements that

are free from matedal misstafement, whether due to fraud or eror,

In prepanng the fnancial statements, the directors wre responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent
company's akility to continue as o going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters retoted to going concem
and wsing the going concern basis of accounting uniass the dirgctars sither intend to liguidate the group or
the parent company or to ceqse operoiions, or have no reclishic altamatlive but 10 do so.

Auditor's responsiblittes for the audit of the fingnclal statements

Our ohjectives are to abtain reasonable assuronce obout whether the financial statemenits as a whole are
fres from maoterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an guditor's report that includes
oW opirion. Reasonakle assurance is a high level of assutonce, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conduciad in accordance with 1SAs (UK} will always detect a material misstaternent when it exists.
Misstatemnents con amise from fraud or error and are considered material i, individually or in the aggregate.
they could reasonably be expected 1o influence the economic decisions of users taken on The basis of these

finonciol statements.,

A further descripfion of our responsibilities for the audit of the financiol statements is located cn the FRC's

website af: www . frg org. Uk fauditouresponsiniities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Exten! to which the audit wa: considered capable of detecting Iivegularities, including fraud

tregularities. including froud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design
pracedurss in line with our responsibilitios, outtined above, to detect material misstatements in Tespect of
iregularities, including froud. The extent to which ouwr procedures are capable of detecting imegularities,

imcluding fraud is detailed below.

We considered the nature of the group's industry and its contral environmend, and raviewad the group's
documentation of therr policies and pracedures relating to aud and compliance with laws and regulations.
We also anquired of management atbout their own identification ana assessment of the risks of imeguiarities.

we obtained on undersianding of the legal ond regulatory framework that the group operates in, and
identified the key lows and regulations that:
« hadg a direct effect on the determination of materiol amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
These included UK Companies Act. iIFRS, CIRS and tax legisiation; and
+  donot have a direct effect on the financiol statemants but compliaonce with which may be fundomental
io the group's ability to aperate or to avoid a malerial penalty:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED {continued)

We discussed among the audit engagement team, including significant component audit teams and refevant
intemnal specialists such s tax, and vauations specialists regarding the opportunities and incentives thot may

exist within the organisation for roud and how and where fraud might occur in the financial statements.

As aresut of perfaming the cbove, weidentified the greatest potential for fraud or nonccompliance with laws
and regulalions in the following areas, and our specific procedures perforrned fo addrass them are gescribed
below:

= Judgement and estimalion. which give dse to the msk of froud cre required in the preparation of
discounted cash fiow ['DCF'] models usad to detemmine whether there is an impairment of goodwill and
other assets. The same DCF are applied to support the carying value of Ihe Group's venues. The fraud
risk arises with the estimates made aver the future trading assumptions, specifically the assumed date of
venues fe-opening and the discount rate gpplied. We have challenged monagemaeant s assumptions and
comsidered both supporting or conlradictony evidence whilst alse engaging specialist input inte the audit
of the discount rate In each region. We have abo considered the appropriatenass of the sensitivities

performed by management and the disclosures thereot,

» [he Group has utiised a number of Covid-19 related govemment support schemes. The noture, eligibility
and complexity of the schemes varies between terrifories. We identified o fraud risk in redation 1o the
Group's applications under these schernes given the complexity and reduced time period in which the
schemes were established, speciically pinpointed to the Job Retention Schemes in the UK and Germany.
The risk s that amounts clalimed by the Group could be intentionally. of unintentionally, misstated which
could lead to repayments, fines and reputalional damaoge. We have considered the design and
implementation of the controls monagement instigated to ensure the accuracy of applications and
recording of assislance received. With tha involvement of our specidfist leam we have inspected source
daocumentation and, for a sample of clkaims recalculated amounts claimed and traced payments to the
HMRC claims portal and the bank receipt of funds ensuring consistency with amounts recorded in the
finoncial stalements. We have also reviswed the disciosures made in respect of government assistance.

In common wilh all audits under 15As (UK), we are also required to perfonm specific procedures to respand to
the risk of manogement override. in addressing the risk of fraud through managerent override of controls, we
tested the appropriatenass of joumnal entries ond other adjustments: assessed whether the judgements made
in making cccounling estimates are indicotive of a potential bigs; and evaluated the business rationale ot

ony sigrificant framnsactions that are unusual or outside the nomMal course of business,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED (continued)

in addition to the above, our procedureas to respond to the risks identified included the following:
+ reviewing financial statement disclosures by testing to supporing documentation to assess compliance
with provisions of relevaent laws and regulations described as having g direct effect on the financial

statements;

«  performing analytical procedures 1o ideatify any uhusual or unexpectad relationships that may mdicate
risks of matenal misstatement due to fraud:
»  enguiiing of management conceming actual ond potential Bigation ond claims, and mstances of non-

compliance with tows and regulations; and

»  reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance and reviewing cormespondence with
HMRC.

Repoit on otherlegat and regulatory requirements

Opinlons on other motters prescribed by the Componies Act 2004

In our opinion, based an the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

s the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ repor for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial staterments; and

» the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with appiicable legal

raquirements,

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and of the parent company and their
environment abiained in the course of the audit, we have hat identified any material misstatements in the

strategic report or the directors' report,

Matters on which we are required to repart by exceplion

Undler the Companies Act 2004 we ara required to repoit in respact of the folowing mattess if, in Gur opinion;

»  adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returnt adequate for our
audit have not been received from branches nol visited by us; or

« the paren! company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting recards and returns;
or

« certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

« we have not raceived all the information ond explanations we require far our audi.

We have nothing 1o rapart inraspect of these matters,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED {continued)

Use of our report

This report is made solely 10 the company's members, as a body, in occordance with Chopter 3 of Part 14 of
the Companies Act 2004. Our oudit work has been undertaken so that we might slate to the company's
members those matters we are required o state to them in an auditor's repert and for no other purpose. To
the tullest extent permitted by kw, we do not accept or assume responsibillity 1o onyone other than the
company and 1he company’s mambers as a body, for our audit work, for this report. or for the opinions we

have formed.

S LT
Helen Wildmon ACA [Senior Statutary Auditor)
For and on behalt of Deloitte LLP
Statutory auditor
London
United Kingdom

21 July 2021
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Note 52 week pericd 52 week pericd
ended 2¥ March erded 28 March
2021 2020
£000 £000
Revenue 3 4} .64} 476,747
Cost of soles [ 19,208} .1189,248)
Grass profit 22,433 IB7,4%9
Administrative expenses (116,793} {284,575)
Share of resulls of assaciates and isind venlures 11 {247} {702)
Operating [ioss)/profi 4 (94,609} 2,222
Finance income 7 1,546 1,344
Finance costs 8 [54.072) 137,473
Loss before tax {147,135} 133,907]
Taxation 9 8,183 7.982
Loss for the period {135,952} {25,925
Attributabie to: )
Cumers of the Company {138,952) (25,925}
Comprehansive Income
Loss for the period {138,952) 125,925)
ttemns that may be reclassified subsequenily to
prafit or foss;
Exchange differences on fransiation of forgign (492} 5,195
operations
itemns that will nat be reclassified subseguentiy to
profit or loss:
Remeasurements of post-empioyment benefit 274 241
obligalion:
Tolal comprehensive loss for the period [139.170) (20,489)
Atiibutioble fo.
Qwners of the Company {139.170} (20,489}
Total comprehensive loss for the period {132,170} (20,489)

Al uctivity relates 1o Continuing operations.

There are no materidl differences between the losses far the periads disclosed above and their historical cost

equivalents. The accompanying notes form part of ond are to be read i conjunction with these financial

statements.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Consolidated Company
27 March 28 Mmarch 27 March 28 March
201 2020 2021 2020
£000 £000 £'000 £000

v astments 10,33 2,178 4,356 413,835 262575
nterasts in assaciales and joint ventures 1133 3,528 1.51% - -
Goodwil 12 362,884 372730 - -
intangible assats 12 18,609 16,328 - -
Property, plont and equipment 13 359.479 430,205 - -
Deferred tax assets 22 17,316 11.567 - -
Non-currant frade ond othar receivables 14 22,4314 23318 - .
Non-cunent assets B14,425 260,723 413835 262,575
nventories 14 505 +,044 - -
nvestments in shows i5 2,373 3,794 - -
Trade angd other receivables 16 39,360 62,554 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 17 185,432 139.085 144 .
Cunrent assels 227,690 206,457 146 -
Total assety 1LO44, 115 1 067,180 413,981 262,575
Trade ang ofher payables 18 189,571 260818 11.04¢ 10.900
Borrowings 19 6%.37G 69,370 - -
Obligations under fnance leases 20 16,393 19.474 -
Pravisions 21 15,801 25483 - -
Currant liablilies 291,135 375143 11,044 10,700
Net current llobilities [63.445) [168.487) (10,900} {10,900}
Borrowings 19 514,037 456,670 - -
Obligations under linance lecses 20 149,693 157.706 - -
Deferred ax iabilities 22 28,198 28.699 - -
Non-current ablltles 491,928 643,075 . -
Total Habilittes 983,043 1018218 11,0446 10,900
Net assets 41,052 48,952 402935 251,475
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
{continued)

AS AT 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Censolidated Compony
27 March 2021 78 March 2020 27 March 2021 28 sarch 2020
£'000 £000 £000 £000

Shaore capital 23 414 2562 414 242
Share prernium account 402,522 251.414 402,521 251.413
Transiation reserve 26,991 27.433 - -
Accumulated deficit {368.875] {230,197} - -
Tota) equity aftributabie to #1052 48 342 402,935 251,675

owners of the Company

The Company has taken advantage of the 2xemplion contained within section 408 of 1he Companies Act
2004 not to present its own Statement of Comprehensive Income and refated notes, The result for the vear
dealt with i1 the financial statemeants of the Company was £rvl {2020 Enil}.

The financial statemants of were approved by the Board of Directors and outhorised for issue on 21 July 2021,

They were signed on its behaqif by:

S

John Oldcom
Reqlstered Number Q8749974
Director
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Net cash (used In)/generated from operaling aclivitles

Purchases of property, plont and equipment
Furchases of intongible assets
Net recoupment from shows

Net cash used ininvesting Eg:ﬂyﬂi;_s_; A

New shareholder loans raised

Froceeds from share ssue

Repayments of bank borowings

Rapayrment of gbligations under finunce teases
Interest received

Interest paid

Net cash generated by linancing aclivities

Net increase In cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents ot beginning of pefiod
Net increase in cash and cash equivaients
Foreign exchonge {loss]fgain on cash

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Forihe 52
weelk
period
ended 27 For Ihe 52 week
Morch penod ended 28
20 March 2020
£000 £000
24 (10:8,52¢€}) 62,235
110.38%) 40.923)
£4,343) {£3,144)
1,401 1,855
{13,351} {52,212)
135,000 69,370
§51,260 -
(85.50C) -
{11.054) 118.028)
1,544 22
{20,998} (22,917)
i70.216 28,447
48339 38,470
139,045 98,956
48,33% 38,470
ey 1.639
17 185,432 132,065

The accompanying notes form part of and are to be read in conjunclion with these financial statermments.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

General information

internationl Entertainment Holdings Limited ({the "Group”) is a private Company limiled by shares,
incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act and is registered in Englond and Wales, The
address of the registered office is 28 5. George Street, London, WIS 2FA, United Kingdom,

The prncipal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the Group) and the nature of the Groyp's

operatons are set out inin the strategic report on pages 1 to 22.

Thase financial statements are presented in pounds steriing because that s the cumency of the primary

economic environment in which the group operates.
Adoption of new and revised standards

Amendments ta IFRSs thot are mandatorily effective for the curent period

in the curent year, the Group has applied amendments ta IFRSs issued by the internafional Accounting
Standards Board (1ASE| that are mandatorily effective for on accounting period that begins on or after 1
January 2020,

The adoption of these amendmeants in the year did not have a material impact on the financial statements.,
New and revised IFRSs In Issue but not yet effective:

At the gate of autharisation of these fingncial statements the Group has not gpplied the following new ond
revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to 1AS 1 - Classification of liabilities as curent or Non-current
- Armandments to |AS 3 - Relerance to the Conceptual Fromewaork,
Amendments to 1AS 8 - Definition of Accounting Esfimates
- Arnendments 1o (AS 12 - Defered Tax related 1o Assets ond Liabiities
- Amendmenks to 1AS 14 — Properly, Plant and Equipment; Proceeds before intended use
- Ameandments to |AS 37 - Onerous Contracts - Costs of fulfiling o confract
- Amendments fo [FRS 3 - Business Combinations
. IFRS 16— COVID-19 Related Rent concessions
- IFRS 17 - Insuronca contracts
- Annual improvements 1o IFRS standards 2018 — 2020 (IFRS 1, IFRS 9, IFRS 16, 1AS 41)

The Cirectors are curently evaiuating the impact of the adoption of thase standards, amendments and
interpretations but do not expect them 1o have a material impaoct an the Group operation or results
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. SignHicard occounting policias

Basis of accounting

The financial stotements have been prepared in occordance with Intemational Fnancial Reporting
Standards [IFRSs). The finoncial stotements have clsc been prepared in accordance with IFRSs odopted by
the European Union and therefore the Group financial statements comply with Article 4 of the EU IAS

Regulation,

The Company has taken advontage of the exemplion contained within section 408 of the Companies Act
2004 not to prosent its own Stafement of Comprehensive Incomea and related notes. The profit for the year
dealt with in the finoncial staternents of the Company was £nil (2020; £ril).

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for inancia! instruments
that are measured at fair vaiues al the end of egchreporting period, as expiained in the accounting policies
below. Histarical cost is generaly based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods

and services,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paig to tronsfer a laoiity in an orderly
iransaction between market participants ot the measrament date, regardiess of whether fhat price is
directly observabie or astimated using another valuation techrigue. In astimating the foir vatue of an asset
or a liability, the Group takes into accounl the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those charactedistics into account whean pricing the gsset o licbility at the measwrement date.
Fair value for measurement andfor disclosure purposes in these consolidated financicl statements is
determined on such a basis, except for sharge-based payment transactions that are within the scope of IFRS
2, teasing transactions that are within the scope of 1IAS 17, and measurements that have some sirnilarities 1o

fair value but are not fdir value, such as net realsable value in 1AS 2 or value It wse in 1AS 34,
Qperaling resvlts

The operating resuits include ransactions up to ond including the Saturday on or preceding 31 March of
each period.

Sasis of consolldation

The consolidated financial statements incorparate the financial statements of the Company and entilios
confralled by the Company lits subsidiaries). Confrol is achieved when the Company has the power over
the investes, is exposed, or has ights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability te use Its power to affect its retums.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the period are included in the Comsolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income from the date the Company gains contfral undil the date when the
Company ceases to control the subsiciary,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Signiticant accounting policies {continued)

Basls of consoldation (confinued})

Al intfragroue assets and lichiities, eguity, income, expensas and cash flows relating to transactions
betweaen the members of the Group are gliminatad on consolidation,

Non-controfling nterests in subsiciaries are identified separatsety from the Group's equity therein. Those
intarests of non-—onkroling shareholders that are prasent ownership interests are initiclly measured al the
non-contralling interesis' proportionate share of the fair value of the acguiree's ideniificble net assels.
Subsequent 1o acquisition, the camying armouni of non-conkaling interests is the amount of those interests
ot inltiat recognition plus the non-controling interesis’ share of subsequent changes in egquity.

Bysiness Combinations

Acquisitions of subsidiaries are occounted far using the acquisition method. The consideration transfarred in
a business combination is measured at fair value. Acquisitior-related costs are recognised in profit o ioss as

incurrad.

Goodwil is measwred s the excess of the sum of the consideration transfetred, the amount of any non-
controling interest in the acguiree, and the fair value of the gcquirer's previously held equity interesr in the
acquire {if any) over the net of the ocquisiion-date amounts of the identifiable assets acguired and the
liabilities assumed,

Contingent consideration s measured ot its ocquisition-date foir value and included os part of the
comsiderotion fransferred in a business combination. Changes in fair value of the contingent consideration
thal qualify o5 measurement period adjustmerts are odjusted retrospectively, with comesponding
adjustrments agairst goodwill, Medasurement pedod adjustments are adjustments that arise from additionat
information olatained duing & maximum period which cannct exceed ona yeaor frorm the acquisition date
about! lacts and crcumstances that existed at the aoquisilion date, Whera changes occur fo contingent
considerolion thot is clossified s on asset or lability. thal do not qualify as measurement perlod adiustments,
the contingent consideration is remeasured al subsequent reporting dates with the coresponding gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss. To the extent that the temms of contingent consiceration arangements
inciude service conditions, consideration is freated os @ cost of employment and is recognised over the

pericd to which the service conditions reilate,
The Group reports provisional amounts until the measurement period is compteted.
Investments

investmands in subsicdicaries ara valued ot Cost less provision for impairment,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {confinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERICD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Significant occounting policles (continued]

Assoclates and joinf arangements

An associale is an entily aver which the Group has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
an Interast in a joint venture, Significant nfluence is the power to particioate in the finencial and operaling

policy dacisions of the investes but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint arrongement is an arangement of which fwe or more parties have joint control, Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arangement, which exists omly when decisions akout the
relevant activities fi.e. activities that significantly offect the retums of the arrangement) require the unanimous
cansent of the parties sharing control. Joint amangements are classified inta two typss - joint operations and
joint ventures.

A joint gperation i ajoint arangement whereby the parties that have joint confrol of the arrangement (ia,
joint operators) hove rghts to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities. relating to the arrangement. A joind
vanture i q joint arangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arangement {fL.e. joint
ventures) have rights to the net assets of the arangement. The type of joint amongement is assessed by
considering its rights and ohiligations. by considering the sfructure and legal form of the arangement, the
cantractual terms agresd 10 by the parties to the arongement and, when relevant, other facts and

circumstances.

The assets andliabilities {and relaled reverues and expanses) of joint operations are recognised in proportion
1o the interest in the arangsment.

The resulls and assets and liabilities of associates ond joint ventures are incomporated in thase financidl
statemants using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, an Investment in an associate
is initiclly recognised in the consolidated Statement of Financial Position at cost and adpusted theraafier to
recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate. When
the Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's interest in that associate {which includes
any long-term interests that, in subsiance, form part of the Group's net irvestment in the associate], the
Group discontinues tecognising its share of further losses. Adallional 10sses are recognised only 1o the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Goodwll

Goodwil is nol amortised but is reviewed for impairment &t least annually,

For the purpose of impaimment testing. goodwll s allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units
(CGUs) sxpected to banelit from the synergies of the combination. Cash-generating units to which gooawil
has beean alocated are tested for impaiment annually. or more frequently when there is an indication that
the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than s carying
armount, the impairment loss ks allocated first o reduce the camying amount of any goodwill aiocated 1o the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit prorata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. An impairment ioss recognised for goodwil is not reversed in a subsequent period.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Significant accounting poilcias [continuad)

Goodwill (centinved)

Prior to the cument year the Group's two German subsiciaries, BB and Mehr, were treated ¢s separate CGUS.
This policy has lbeen changed to recagnise BE and Mehr as one combined Mainland Eurcpe CGU, aligning

tha CGUs to the monagement's divisional view of the Group's activities.
Impakment of non-current assats

At each bolance sheet date, the Group reviews the conrying amounts of its tangible and intongible assets
to determine whether there i any indication thot those ossats have suffered an impairment (0ss. Goodwill is
raviewad fof impairment at least annudily.

for the purpose of iImpairment testing, goodwill is allocated, at acquisition, tc the cash generating units or
group of units that are expecied to banefit from that busingss cormbbination,

An impairment loss is recognised if the carmying amount of the assel under considerafion exceeds its
recoverable amount, Recoverable amaount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value inuse.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
discount rate thot reflects current market gssessments af the me value of money and the dsks specific to

the asset.

if the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit s lass than the carving amount of the unit, the
irnpaiment loss is aiocated fisst 1o reduce the Canmying amount of any goodwill and than to the other assels
of the unit prorata on the basis of the camying amount of each assel in the unit. An impalmaearnt loss

recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.
Investmeants in shows and co-preduciion arangements

Invastments in shows are slated at cost less amounts recouped to date, and provisions for any amounts

which the direciors do not believe are recoverable.

Production arangements are reviewed on a production-by-production basis and freated based on the

principles outlined above qs either g subsidiary, an associate or joint venture or joint arangement,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Signiticant accounting policles {continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Properly, plant and equipment are stated at cost less deprecigtion and accumulated impairments.
Depreciation is provided ot rates calcuiated to wiite off the cost of lixed assets. ess their estimated resicudcl
valua, on a straight-ine basks over their expected usetul ives as foffows:

Freshold buildings 4010 50 years
Leaszhold property Shorter of leasehold len and useful Iife of 40 1o 50 years
Fixtures and fittings 410 10 years. or over the pariad to 1he end of the lease of the thedalre

if this is shorter
IT Equipment 3o Syeans

No depreciation B appied to the cost of gssets n the course of consfuction. Freehold {and is not
depreciated.

ntangible asseis

Intangible assets all have finite lives ond ore carried at cost fess occumulated amortisation and
cccumulated impairment losses. Amortisation & recognised on a straight-ine basis over their estmated
useful lives and s recognised in the adminirative expenses line item.

The amortisation period for soffware is 4 years. The estimated fife of other intangible assets i considered on
an assel-by-asset basis and is up to 10 years.

Inventory

Inventory is valved at the lower of cost and rel redlisoble value after making due oiowance for obsolete
and siow-maving items.

Finoncial Instruments

Finoncial ossets and financial liabiities are recognised n the Consclidated Statement of Financial Position
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the insfrument and are initially megsured
at foir value. Transaction costs thal are direclly oltinbutable te the acquisition or issue of financial assets ond
financial liobilties. other than finoncial assets and financial liabiliies ot fair value through profit or loss
["FVTPL"). are added Yo, or deducted kom. the fair value of the finoncial assets or financial kabities on initiol
recognition. Transaction costs direcity attibutable 1o the acguisition of financial assets or finoncial kabiities
al fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit o loss.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS UMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {conlinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 2/ MARCH 2021

1. Significant accounting policles (conlinued)

Financial instruments (continved)
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash ond cash equivaients compriseé cash balonces, calt deposils ond escrow-type accounts. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integrat part of the Group’s cash managernent are
inciuded s a component of cash ond cash equivalents for the purpose of the Statement of cash flows.

Trade receivables ond accrued income

frade receivables and accrued income are cilassified os loans and receivobles ond are megsured af
omortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment. Since trade receivables and
accrued income are ypicolly due within one year, and the effect of any effective interest is immaterial, this

equates to initlal canying volue less any impairment.
Borowings

Leans and Borrowings are initially measured af fair value, net of fransaction costs. They are subsequently
measured at amartised cost using the effective interest methad, with interest expense recognised on an
cffective vield basis. The eftective interest rate is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
Hability and of allocoted interest expanse over the relevant period. The effective intarast rate is the rata that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payiments through the expected life of the financial llabity, or.
where appropriate, ¢ sharter period to the net carrying amount on initiol recognition.

Trade payoabies and occruals

Trade payables and accrugls are classified as loons and receivabies and are measured at amortised cost
wsing the effective interest method. Since Yrode payables and accrudals are typically due within one year,

and the effective of any effective intarest is immaterial. this equates to initial conying value.
Fnanciol guarantees

Finonciol guarantee contracts are accounted for os insurance contracts,

Defomred incoma

Amounts received by the Groun for services performed in fulure are classified as deferred income and
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive iIncome when the service is performed.

Retlrement banefits

Paymants ta defined conkibuticn refirement benefit schemes are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service enlifing them to the contributions. Differences between Conhibutlons
payable in the pericd and contributions aclually poid are shown a3 either accrudls or prepaymentsin

the balonce shest,
5!
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1.  Significant accounting policles [conlinved)

Revenue

Revenue is recogmised i the far volue of the considoration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods and services provided in the nomnal course of business, net of gdiscounts,

VAT and olher sales-related taxes. Revenue for the Group comprises several elements, including:
Venuve rentaf gnd proguc ion-related services

Charges to productions in respect of services provided {such as venue rental and staffing) are recognised

net of sales taxes as those services are provided.

Revenue From production-relaled services is recognised al the dale of performnance of the show, undil
which fima it is held on the Statement of Financial Position s Deferred Income,

Fromotional sorvices

The Group acls as promoter for self-produced shows and shows produced by third parties. Revenue from
these services is recognised of far valve of consideration received, net of salss taxes, at the date that the
promaotional services are provided.

Marketing services
Revenue from the provision of marketing services is recognised ot the farr value of the consideration

received or feceivable, The fair value of consideration tckes into account trade discounls, settlerment
discounts and volume rebates. Marketing seqvices revenue is recognised net of sales taxes over the period
that services are provided, or as recoverable casts are incured. in accordance with the temms of the
contractual agreement. When recorded marketing services frevenue exceads the gmounts invoiced to
client. the excess is classified as accrued income.

Ticket safes

Revenue from tickst salas represants Ihe revenue eamed from commissions, credit card charges and
similar charges. This revenue is recognised ot the dale the ticket is sold.

Revenue from ticket soles where the Group is acling as sefing agent {wheather for its own theatres or for
other UK venues) includes bocking tees, camrmissions, and similar additiornat incame charged at the point
of sale. These amounts are recognised net of any soles taxes ol the kansaction dote. Such revenue is
recognised as an agent rather than principal transaction, and 5o excludes the face value of the tickets
sold.

Relail sales

Revenue frorn concession sales o customers at the Group's venwes is reC ogrised net of sales taxes at the
point of sale.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)
FOR THE 562 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Slgnificant accounting policles (confinuad)

Revenve {continved)

Cther revenue

The Group provides various other services on an ad hoc basis, all of which are related to its principal Qctivity.
Reiated revenue is recogrised ot fair vaiue over the pericd that such services are performed and the

psertormance obligations ars mat.
Joint operations

in ralation to co-produchon arongements, where a controling o joint oparation inferest is held, revenue
includes the Group's share of revenue for the production. Where no controling inferest is held tumover
represents net income from productions. Where equilty accounting is applied. the share of profit orloss i
disclosed in the "share of results of associctes and joint ventures” ine.

Government grants

Income from government grants is recognised as defermed income and released to the Consclidated
Statement of Comprehensive hecome as the attached conditions are satisfied. Where the grant relates ta
procurement of an ossel. the omount received is relecsed to the Consolidated $tatement of
Compreternsive Income over the useful life of the asset against associated depreciation.

A matenial grant reicted o assets s prasenled in the staterment of financlal position as a daduction from
the camying value of the related asset, with a consequent reduction in the amnual charge for depreclation.

COVID-1? related job retention schemes are corisidered within the scope of 143 20, with fulough receipts
recorded Qs a reduclion in payroll expenses.,

IFRS 15 Leases

The Group recognises g Aght-af-yse asset and a lease ability at the ledse commencerment date, The right-
of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which compiises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted far

any leose payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incured.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-ine method from the commencement
date. The estimated useful lives of the right-of-use assets are detemmined on the same basis as those of
property, piant and equipment.

The lease hability & initially medsured at the present value of the lease poyments that are not paid of the
commencement date, discounted using the Group's incremental bomowing rate, The liahility is subsequently

adjusted for cny re-measurement of the iease figbility resuiting rom reassesments or ladse madifications.

The Group presents dght-ofuse assets in ‘property, plant and eguipment’ and lease liabilities in finance
leasas' in the staternent of financial position,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS UMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)
FCK THE 52 WEEK PERICD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Significont accounting policles {conlinuad]

Shori-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group has elecled not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of 12
monlhs or less and leases of low-value assels. The Group recognises the laase payments associated with
these leases as an expense on a skraight-ine basis aver the lease term.

Farelgn currencies

For the purpose of the consolidated lincncial statemeants. the results and financial position of each Group
Company are expressed in pounids starding, which i the functional curency of the Company, and the
prasentationat curency for the consolidated financiol statements.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign curencies are fransialed into sterling al rates
of exchange wling at the balance sheet date. Transactions In foreign curencies are transiated into sterling
at the rote nJling on the date of the transaction. Such exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss. Foreign exchange gains or kosses on loans thot are effeclively investment instruments, such as where a
parent Company makes g loan with no repayment terms tg o subtssidiary holging Company as pant of
acquisition consideration, are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Resulls of overseas subsidiaries are ranstated at average monthly rates. Assets and liabilities of overseas
subsldiarios are transtated at the rate iling at the balance sheet date. Such exchange differences arsing
are recognisad in the transkation reserve and the Statement of Changes in Equity.

Operating profit

Qperating profit is stated after the share of rasulls of associates but before finance income and costs, other
gains and losses and taxes.

Firance Income

Finance income is recognised in profit o loss in the period in which it s earned.
Finance cosly

Finance costs are recognised in profit of loss in the period in which they are incumed.
Cther gains and losses

Other gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss in the petiod in which they are incumed.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Significant accounling policles (confinued)

PFre-Production related costs

Expeanses incumed prior 1o g production going live which are directly atiabutable to the production of the
show are categerisad inte sither property plant ond equipment and deprecioted over the assumed Useful
ife of the show, or 'Other non-tangibie assets’, which are released to the Profit ond Loss over the show's
useful fife based upon the ratio of the cument period’s revenues 1o the aestimated total revenues [Total
Production Revenue} for each production. Where estimates of Total Production Revenus decreases.
amortization of pre-production costs may be accalerated, Conversaly, it estrates of Tolal Production

Revenues were o increase then amartizotion of costs may be slowed,

Taxation
The fox expense represents the sum of the tax cumently payable ond defered tax.

Current and defemed tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they reiate to tems that are
recognised in other cormprehensive income or directly in equity. in which case the curent and deferred tax
are gko recognised in other comprahensiva income or directly in equity respectively. Where cuent fax or
detemed tax arises from the initial accounting for o business combination, the tax effect is included in the

accounting for the business cambinalion.

Current tax is based on haxable profit for the period coiculoted using tax rates that have been enccted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Belened tax is recognised on temporary differences between the camying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computdtion of
faxable profit. Deferad tax liakilties ore generally recognised for ol toxable temporary differences.
Deferred 1ox assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that toxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporory differences can

be utilised.

Such defemred tax gssets and liobifities are not recognised if the temporgry difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill. frorm the intial recognition [ofther than in a business combination] of assets and
iabilities In a fransaction that offects nelther the taxable profit nor the accounting profit or investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, where the Group is oble to control the raversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference wil not reverse in the foraseaable
future, Tha amount of defered tax provided is bosed on the expected manner of reglisation or settiernent
of the canying omount of assets and liakilities, wing tox rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
financial period end date. A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable thot future
taxable profits will be avallable against which the asset can be utilised.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {coniinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Significant accounting policles (confinued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligotion {legal or constructive] as d result of @
past event, it is probable that the Graup will be required 1o settle that obligafion and o refable estimate
can be made of the amowunt of the obligation.

2. Ciftical accounting judgements and key sources of esiimation uncestainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in nole 1, the Directors are
raquired to maoke judgements, sstimates and assumplions about the carrying amounts of assels and
fiabilitias that are not readily apparent from clber sources.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical expedience ond other factors that are

considered to be relevant. Actuat results may differ from these estimates.

The astimates and underlying assumptions are raviewed on an ongeing basis, Revisions to accounting
estimates ore recognised in the penod in which the esfimate s revised IF the revision affects anly that period,
or in the paviod of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both curent and future periods.

Judgemenls
Going concem basis

In order to assess whether it is appropriate for the Group o be reported as a going concem, the Directors
are requined te make jpdgements regarding the Group’s future trading perfommance, cash generation and
ability 1o satisfy its financial obligations. Having undertaken appropriate enguiries and having considered
{he business activities and the Group's principat risks and uncertainties, the Directors concluded that the
accounts should be prepored on a going concem basis. Please refer ta the Directors' Report for our deldiled
assessment of this matter.

Key sources of estimation uncertainly

Canrying volue of non-curernt assels

Impairment

The Group assesses the carying volues of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets annoally.
Recoverakiity s dependent upon assumptions and eslimates regording markel conditions, fulure cash

flows and disc ount rates, known as at the 27 March 2021 . A material change in assumplions may signiicantly
impact the potenlial impaiment of these gssets.

An extension fo the dark pericd of 6 months would not generate an impairment to any of the cash
generating units {CGUs) but reduces headroom to 21%, 103%, 289% and 122% of asset values of the UK, US,
Germony and Morkeling Services CGUs respectively. Further detail con be found in note 12,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {confinued)

FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

3. Revenue

Thie Group's revenue from extemal Ccustormen by classification s detailed below:;

52 week period 52 week perjod
ended 27 March ended 28 March

2021 2020

£'000 £000
vernue Rental and Production Related Services 10,459 230,088
Promaotional & Markefing Services 18,898 115,478
Ticket and Retail Sales 5.456 119,547
Other &,798 11,654
Total revenue 41,641 476,747

The Group's revenue fram externa customers by geogrophicd location is detailed below:

§2 week perfod 52 week periog
ended 27 March sndad 28 Maorch

2021 2020

£000 £000
United Kingdom 21.091 213,847
Rest of Europe 10,949 123,473
North Americo 8,857 129,441
Asio 2.944 2986
Tolal revenue 41,641 476747
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued}
[OR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

4. Operating (loss)/proit

Net loss for the period has been arived at after charging/ (crediting):

52 week 52 week pericd

period ended ended 28
27 March March 2020
202
£000 £000
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 13 26.615 21,439
Depreciation charge for right-of-use assets -buildings 13 8,801 B.759
Amortisation of intangible fived assets 12 1.988 1.974
Impairment of property, plont and equipment 13 - 7154
Impairment of intangible assels 12 - 7.776
Impairment of long term debtor - 8.967
Loss on disposat of property, plant and equipment 13 2816 -
Loss on disposal of intangible assets 12 122 -
Irwvantory write downs 14 194 -
Operating lease charges 7.018 2,151
Staff costs & 38,487 137,810
Finance income 7 f1.5464) f1.344)
Finance costs 8 47,682 30,924
Interast expeanse on [FRS 14 lease ligbiities 8 6.390 6,547
5. Avditor's remunerafion
The analysis of the auditor's remuneratian is s follows.
52 week pediod 52 week penind
ended 27 March endad 28
2021 March 2020
£000 £000
Fees payable to the Company's auditor and their associates for the audit of:
The conschdated and porent financial statements 443 418
The subsidicry financial statemeants 50 45
Tolal audit fees 513 433
Taxation complionce services - 71
Taxafion advisory services - L
Tofal non-qvdit fees - at
Total 513 564
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WELK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

& Stalf costs

The average monthiy number of employees {including executive directors) waos:

52 week perlod 52 week period
ended 27 March ended 28 March

20 2020
Directors 5 5
Venue staff 3174 4,349
Other 1,105 1,526
Total monthly average number of employees 4284 5,880

The average number of individualk with an empioyment contract in place during the period i
4,698. Of this population, the total monthly average number of employees paid through the
payroll during the period is set out in the table above.

Their nggregate remunavation comprised: £'000 £'000
Wages and salanes 31,148 125,644
Socidl security costs 5702 9,703
Other pension costs 1,444 2,441
Total aggregote remuneration as 487 137810

Current year staff cosls are presented net of income from government suppaort schemss fotalling £41.3
mifion {2020: £nil).

Directors disclosed nere are only those employad by the Group. so exclude boord members employed by

the Group's sharehoiders,

The average monthly number of employees of the Company was five, being the executive directors
{2020; five].
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

&.  Sfuff costs (conlinved)

Remuneration of directors and key management personnel
The rermunaration of the directors and key managemeant personnel of the Group is set out balow:

52 weak perlod 52 week period
ended 27 March ended 28 March

2021 2020
£000 £000
Remunerafion of directors:
Salaries, fees, bonuses, and benefits in kind 1.045 1,501
Money purchase peansion conliibutions 11 20
Totol remuneration of directors 1.056 1.521
Remuneration of direciors and key management personnef,
Remunergtion 2,474 3.687
Sacial secunty contributions 349 513
Pansion 54 &0
Total remuneration of directors and key management 2.87¢ 4,260

personnel

Key management parsonnal arg those who have significan! influence over the operational wurming of the
business. During the peariod. retirement bengfils ware accning to two [2020: two) directors in respeact of
defined contribution schemses,

The highes! paid director received remunerafion of £575000 [2020: £935000). The volue of the
Company's contributions paid fo a defined contribution pension scheme in respact of that individual
amounled o £4,000 {2020: £10.000).

During the period, directons and key management personnel received toldl compensation for Joss of office
totalling £1,157.000 (2020: £nil}, an which social security of £142,000 {2020: £nil) was paid by the Group.

Pensions

The Group operates defined contribution pension schemes. The assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the Group In an independenlly administered fund. The pension cosl charge represents
contributions payable by the Group to the Rnd and amounted 1o £1.644000 {2020: £2.441.000}.
Contibutions totaling £62%,000 [2020: £340,000) were payable to the fund ot the balance sheel date.

Employee benefil trust

The Group has ne direct employee share scheme or share-based payment arangement. However, cerfain
employees of the Group have acquired an inferest in the equity of the holding Company via an emiployee
benefit frust in both the curent and prior periods.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {confinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERICD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

7. Fnanceincome

52 week 52 week period
petiod ended ended 28
27 March 2021 March 2020

£'000 £000
Interest income 1,544 1.324
Unwinding of discount ory long tenn recelvables and - 20
payablaes
finance Income 1,546 1,344

8. Finance costs

52 week perlod 52 week period
ended 27 March endead 23 March

2021 2020

£000 £'000
Interest on loans from parent undertakings 1,050 1.841
Interest on bank overdrafts ond loans 25,582 22,084
interest on obligotions undor finance lecses 4,995 4,957
Interest expanse on IFRS 14 lease liabilities 6,390 4,547
Amortisation of financing fees 2,597 3.780
Fareign exchange ioss/[gain) 13,418 {1,734}
Finonce costs 54,072 37,473
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

¢.  Toxalion

Analysis of 1ax credit in the pericd

52 week 52 wesk pericd

period ended ended 28
27 March sMarch 2020
2021

Cumrent fax £'00C £000
Tax fcredit) £ charge on loss for the period [173) 431
Prioe year tax adjustrnent (1.333; {4.570)
Foreign tax in the perod - 987
Tolal cumrent tax {1,508} {3.173)

Delesred tax 22
Defered tax credit curent year {18,097} i8.333)
Change in tax rate - 2,740
Adjustmenits in respect ol prior periods 11,419 763
Total deterrad tax (6.677} {4.810)
Tax on loss (8.183) (7.982]

UK corporation tax i calculated at 19% (2020: 19%] of the estimated taxable profit for the penod. Taxation
for other jurisdictions is caiculated at the ratas prevaiiing in the respective judsdictions.

Thera is Nil incomes tax impoact §2020; N} for itens within other comprehensive income.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

?. Taxatlon {conlinued)

The credi! for the period can be recanciled to the Conscidated Statement of Comprehansive Income as

foliows,

§2 week perlod 52 week pericd
ended 28 ended 3 March
March 2021 2020
£'000 £000
Loss belore tax {147.135} [33.907}

Loss multiplied by stondard rate of corporation tax in the UK of
19% {2020: 19%) |27.954) {6.442)

Effects of.

Expenses nol deductible for tax purposss {141] 3,564
Adiustments to tox chorgs in respect of prior periods 10.087 {3.807)
Non-qualifying depreciation 728 -
Effect of different rate for deferred lax - 2750
Effect of averseas tax rates {2,483) {3.402)
Theatre tax credit 11734 {%35)
Change in unrecognised deferred tax assets 11,970 -
Effect of foreign eachange {15 -
Other reconciling differencas - 280
Tax credit lor the perted {5.183) {7.982)

Tha closing UK defamed tax iability as at 27 March 2021 has been colcuiated at 19% reflecting the tax rata
ot which the defered tax liability is expected to become payable.

An increase in the UK corporation tax rate 1o 25%, elfective from 1 Apdl 2023, was announced in Rinance Bil
2021 which received royal assent on 10 June 2021 becoming Finonce Bill 2021, This rate had nat been
substontively enacted at the balonce sheet date and therefore is not reflected in the tox caleulations for
the year ended 27 March 2021, The impact of the rate change om 19% to 25% would be to incragse the
defemed tax ligbiity ¢s gt 27 March 2021 from £10,883,000 to £14.320,000.

Deferrad tax liakiities have not been recognised in respect of losses in overseas subsidiaries as it is not

probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax losses can be utilised,

Deferred tax assets on carried forward uriutifsed losses in Australio of £2,.392,000 {2020: £2.097.000), Germdany
of £29.575.006 (2020: £10.819.000 recognised] and the US of £30,903,000 (2020: £nil) have not been

recognised.

There are cared forward unutiised tax losses in the UK of £87,382,000 {2020: £351.000}. A deferred tax asset
of £15,534.000 [2020: £ri1) has been recognised os it is expected that these lossas wilt be Wilised within the
next two years.,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

10. Investments

he directly and indirectly held subsidianes are listedin note 33.

Group As ot 52 weak As ot 52 week
peiiod ended period ended
27 Morch 2021 28 March 2020
£000 £000

Cost and net beok value
Listed investments . t
Unllisted investments 2.178 4,355
invesiments 2,178 4,354
Company Asat 52 week As ot 52 week
period ended period ended
27 March 2021 28 March 2020
£000 £000

Cost and net book valus
Subsidiary investments 413,835 252,575
Investments 413,835 262578

The Groug's unlisted investenents relate to its invesiment in Kings Thealre Redevelopment Company LLC, a
company incorporated in the United States of Americo of which the Group owns | 08%.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERICD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

11. Inlerests In associales and joint ventures ~ Group

As at 52 weelkk  As at 52 week
pericd ended period ended
27 March 2021 28 Morch 2020

£'000 £000
interests in joint ventures 283 515
Intorests in associates 697 1,004
inferests in associates and joint ventures 3.528 1,517

Joint ventures

The Group haos interests in several individually immateriol joint ventures which take the form of both
productions and businesses. Bach investment i structured as 0 seporate vehicle and the Group has a
residual interest in the net assets of the invastment, Accardingly, the Group has classified its interests as joint
vanturas. For some of the productions, the Group & enidied 1o less than 50% of 1the production earnings

however the production agreement requires unanimous cansent in decision making resulbing in joint contral.

The following companies have a year-end date different to the Group's accounting financiat year end of
27 March 2021;

HF West End: 31 October 2021
- JB UK Touril: 31 Decembber 2021
Train Times $F LP; 3] December 2021
- Train Times Broadway LP: 31 December 2021

This is as aresult of the entities not faling under IEHL hence vaar end dates may need to suit the requirements
of all sharehalders.

Far the purposes of applying the equity meathod of accounting. the Rinancial staterments of HP West End {for
the year endad 31 October 20205, and B UK Tour 1, Train Time SF LP, Train Timeas Broadway LP {for the yaar
ended 3! December 2020} have been used.

The joint ventures are not restricted in thelr abiiity to transfer funds to the Group in the form of cash dividends,

of to repay loans or advances by the entity.

The foliowing table analyses, in oggregate, the camying amount and share of tolal comprehensive income

of these Joint Yentures.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

11, Intesasts In associates and joint ventures - Group (continued)

Canying omount of interests in joint ventures

As at 52 weak
period ended
27 March 2021

£000
2,831

As ol S2 weak
period ended
28 March 2020

£000
515

Share of total comprehensive Income

{247}

(702)

Associotes

Carrying amound of Interests in associales

As at 52 week
period ended
27 March 2021

£'000
&7

As at 52 week
period ended
28 March 2020

£000
1004

Share of tolal comprehensive income
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(continved)

FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIQD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

11. Intangible assets - Group

Yotal
Assels under Olher - {infangible
Software  consfruction Intanglbles Assels  Goodwil Tatal
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £0a0 £'000

Cost
At 30 March 2019 16919 - 6,498 23,417 75954 399,371
Addttions 2.929 3,292 7,447 13,648 - 13,648
Transfers 3,222 {3,222} - - - -
Exchange differences 3 - 462 445 4,565 §.030
At 28 March 2020 23,073 70 14,407 37,550 380,517 418,087
Additions 1.45) 2892 20 4,263 1.434 5.7%8
Disposals {1,084) - (3869 {4,953) - (4.953)
Exchange differences {58} - [758) (8145) [11.627} {12,443)
Al 27 March 2021 23,382 2,952 9,800 35,144 370,324 404,470
Accumulated omorisotion and impairment
At 30 March 2019 8.265 - 3,207 11,472 7.479 18.951
Charge for fhe 52 week period 1.54) - 433 1.%74 - 1.974
impoirmeant - - 7774 1,775 - 1778
Exchange differences - - - - 310 31¢
Al 28 March 2020 2.804 . 11,414 M.222 7.789 2901
Charge for the 52 week period 1,917 - 7l 1,988 1,988
Disposals {+,003) - {3.828) {4,831) - (4,831)
Exchange differences {47} - (797} {844) [347) (1,171}
At 27 March 2921 10,673 - & 842 17.535 7.442 24877
Canying amount
At 28 March 2021 12,70% 2,742 2,938 18,40¢ 342.884 381,493
Al 28 March 2020 18.247 70 29 15,328 372,730 38%,058

The amount of expenditures recognised in the camying amount of assets under construction is £2.9 million

{2020 £2.3 million}.

Other intangible assets relote to show rghts costs and pre-production related costs.

The Comnpany has no Intangible assets [2020: Enil).
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES 7O THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

12. Intangible assets ~ Group {(continved)

Goodwill acquired in a business combination s aglocaled, ot acquisiton, fo the cash genarating units
(CGUs) o¢ group of units that are expected to benefit from thal business combingtion, The carrying amount
of goodwill has been dllocated 1o the foliowing CGLs:

At 27 March

20

£000

United Kingdom 249,834
USA &0.0746
rMainiand Europe w27
Marketing services 13.757
Total goodwilt 342,884

The Group tests goodwill and Intfangible assets annually for impairment, or more frequently T there aro
indications that goodwill might be impained. Property, plant and equipment is also tested for impairment if
there are indicators of impairment, which there havea been in the curent and pricr year, The recoverabie

amounts of the CGUs and fhe group of units are determined from value i Lse calculations.

The impaiment reviews for United Kingdam, USA, Mainlond Europe and Marketing Services do not indicate
any impairment against goodwill, other intangibles or property, plant and equipment.

The: key assumplions and resulting attibutes of the impokment review are os follows:

Unfled Mainland Marketing
EMs Kingdom usAa Evicpe Services
Goodwil 2498 601 322 13.8
PPE / Other intangibles 247 8 94.8 46,0 8.7
Total assets 497.4 154.9 852 225
WACC assumpticn 10.4% 11.0% 10.0% 10.4%
GDP growth 2.0% 20% 2.5% 2.0%
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

12. Inlungible assets - Grovp (cantinued)

The values for the key assumptions were amived at by taking into consideration historical informaotion and
comparing 1o external sources where aoppropriate, such as market rates for discount factors. GDP growth
rates are used as the terminal value growth rate in calculating the nét present values of the respective

CGUs, while the infigtion rates are applied as the base growth factor for yeors 2 10 4,

Budgeted cash flows - the calculation of value in use has basen based on the cash flaws forecast in the

Group's Iatest five yvear plan.

The five year plan ossumes that COVID-19 continues 1o disrupt the Group through FY22, with varying re-
opening dates ocross our tenitories starting from October 2021, The Group's cash flows are forecast toreturn
1o pre-COVID- 1% lavels in FY23.

The following sensitivities were applied to the impaiment test:

Sensitivity | - dark perlod: A plausible extension to the dak period of 4 montns would not generate an
impaiment ta any of the cash generating units {CGUs) but reduces headroom o 21%, 103%, 28%% and 122%

of asset vaiues of the UK, US, Mainiand Europe and Marketing Services CGUs respectivaly.

Sansitlvity 2 - discount rate; A five percentage poinfs increase in the discoun! rate would create an
impoiment to the UK CGU and reduce headroom 1o 34%, 143% and 51% of asset values of the US, Mainkand
Europe and Maorketing Services CGUs respectively.

The increase in discount rate required to create an impairment to each CGU i UK 1% US 8% Mainland
Eurcpe 21%:; and Marketing Services 10%.

This sensitivity wos aiso tested of a venue level. A five percentage points increase in the discount rate

would create impairments to four UK venues, one US venue and cne Mainland Europe venve.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

13. Property. plant and equipment - Group

Right long-term Short-lorm Fidures
Freehold ofUse leosehold leasehold  Assets under and
property Asset property property  consfruction Hinys Tatal
£900 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 3G Mmarch 2019 163,606 - 140,488 22,347 1.732 74137 408,500
Additiors 822 10.228 592 8.553 16,145 43,739
IFRS 14— Right-of-use asset - 87590 - - - - 87.590
Tronsfers - - - - 110,257) 10,257 -
_Exchange differences ... 902 3594 258 (370) {53} [210)  6.444
At 28 March 2020 172,729 91,184 153.4%7 22,589 5945 100,32¢% 544,273
Additions 2,258 - 240 25 &.465 1.400 19,388
Disposals [204] [255) {1194 {783) - {25975) (27.33%)
Transter &3 - - - {18.878] 8.813 -
_Exchangedifferences _ _[1.448] (5809)  (7.841} - {28]  {2.403) (17.529)
At 27 March 2021 173,393 85,120 145,777 213 3.5046 82,184 511794
Accumuiated depreclation and impalment
At 30 March 2019 16.834 - 26,740 4,347 - 29114 77.037
Charge for the 52 week period 3429 8,759 5053 598 - 12,359 30,178
impairment - - - - - 7.154 1.154
_Exchange differences - - £84 - - 295 979
Al 28 March 2020 20,245 8.75% 32,477 4,945 - 48,922 115048
Charge for the 52 week period &,514 8,801 5334 483 - 14,254 35414
Disposals {t74) - (%1) {770} - [23.465)  (24,520)
Exchange differences [275) (479} {1.453) - - [1540) | (3,947)
Al 27 March 2021 24,310 17.08} 35,067 4,458 - 38,201 122,317
Camrying amount
At 28 March 2021 147,088 48,037 109,710 17,173 3,506 43,763 389,477
At 28 March 2020 152444 B2 425 121,020 17,644 5,945 51,407 430,905

The amount of expenditures recognised in the camying amount of nssets under construction is £6.5 million

{2020: £8.6 milhor:}.

The Company has no property, plont and equipment {2020 £nil).
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PCRIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

14. Inveniories - Grouvp

Asal 527 As at 52 week
wagk perlod  period ended
ended 27 28 March 2020

March 2021
£'000 £000
Finished goods af cost 662 1,395
{nventory provision {157) {351)
finished goods and goods lor resale 505 1,044

The Group wrote off £194,000 of inventary during the year (2020: £nil).

The Comparny has no inventory (2020: £},

15. Investiments In shows - Group

As b 52 week A5 of 52 week
period ended  period ended
27 March 2021 28 March 2620

£000 £000
Investments In shows 2.373 3,794

invesiments in shaws reftect the Group's thvestment in productions in which it does not have d contraling

interest.

The Compony has no investments in shows {2020 £nil).
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENOED 27 MARCH 2021

14. Trade and other recelvables — Grovp

As ot 52 week Asat 57 week
pericd ended period ended
27 March 28 March 2020

2021

£000 £000
Notes receivable 5,654 10944
Other non-current recelvables 12,775 12352
Amounts recelvable alter more than 12 months 22,431 23.218

The notes receivable balonce comprises amounts receivable from counterparties in refation to the
financing strecture of the redevelopment of The Hudson Thealre via a welused aorangement Created by
the US government 1o encourage financial instilutions to Invesl inlo redevetopment of historic buildings.
Interest is receivable ot rales beltwean 0.48% and 0.5%. These will be recoverable from the counterparties
gither over the life of the instrument or by fransfer of leasehold interests. The long-term receivable relates to
a bhalance acquired as part of the ACE acquisition and [s & feg for theotre development services provided
which will be paid over @ number of years.

As ol 82 week As ot 52 week
petiod ended pericd ended
27 March 2021 23 March 2020

£'000 £000
Trade recsivables 14,989 29.385
Prepayments and accrued income 6,611 11417
Coporation tax receivable 4,747 5037
VAT receivable 3,982 -
Other receivables 2,031 16,513
Amourds recelvable within 12 months 39,340 82,554

Ciher receivablas include o related party balance of £3.7 million due from the Group’s parent company.
IE Luxco S.o.rd (Luxembourg) (2020: £3.7 million).

The Company had no frade and other receivables {2020: £nil).

Allimpaired trade receivabies have been provided to the exdent they ore believed not to be recoverable.
The madmum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of receivable. The
Group does not hold ony colliotaral as security. Assefs which are neither past due nor impaired are

considered fully recoverabie,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERICD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

16. Trade ond other receivables - Group (confinved])

Anatysis of frade receivable ogeing
Credit isk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will dafault on its corfractual obligations resuiting in financial
ioss 10 the Group. As of 28 March 2020, some of the Group's frade receivables were due and/or past due
but hot impaired. These relate 1o o number ofindependeant customears with no matedial concentration within
any one customer and no custorners who are of particularty high risk of default. The ageing analysis of these
trade recevables is a3 follows:

As at 52 weele  As af 52 week

pearicd ended 27  pericd ended
March 2021 28 March 2020

€000 £000
Upto 3 months 4,669 19,338
3 to 6monihs 234 2,929
Over & months 10,720 10,314
Total 15,423 32,583

As of 27 March 2021, the Group also hetd past due trode receivabies which had been provided for:

As gt 52 week As at 57 week
period ended period ended
27 March 2021 28 March 2020

£'000 £000
Up to 3 months 123 2.078
3 to 4 months 130 217
Ovear & monite e 121 | 903
Total &34 3.198

Under IFRS 9, the Group is required to utilise objective evidence as well as consider forward tooking
information, such as the economic conditions in the countries where the Group operates, and the
probability of defoult when calculaling expected cradit tosses. The maturity of financial assets is therefore

used as an indicator as to the probability of default,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conlinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERICD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

17. Cash and cash equivalems ~ Group

As ot 52 week As at 52 week

perad ended period ended 28

27 March 2021 March 2020

£000 £000

Cash and cash equivaients held in own accounts 182,872 130,215
Cash and cash equivaients held in escrow 2.540 8.849
Cash and cash equivaients 185.432 139,065

The Company has £146,000 of cosh and cash equivalents {2020 £nil).

18. Trade and other payables - Group

As af 52 week As ot 52 week
perlod endad period ended
27 March 28 March 2020

201

£000 £00C
Trade paycbles 26,435 37,155
Defered income 113,802 142,356
Accruals 35.684 58.47¢
Gther toxation ond social security 2,007 4915
Tax creditor 1,931 2,104
Other payablas 8,734 15,014
Govaemment grants teceived and not utilised 923 796
Trade and other payables due within 12 months 189,571 260,816

The Company has gn intercompany payable of £11.0 million [2020: £10.9 milion) which is repayable on

demand, no interest is charged.

The other payables balance includes payroll creditors and amounts due to preduction companies,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

19. Bomrowings - Group

Asal 52 week Asat 52 week
pericd ended  pesiod ended
27 March 28 March 2020

201

£'000 £000
Bank loans - senior debt 358,000 358,000
Bunk lotins - revolving credit facility 49,370 9,370
Tatal senlor debt 427 370 427 370
Fair value adjustment / unamorlised financing fees 16,858 14,261
Bank loans - other - 84,409
Sharehaolder loans 139,179 -
Borrowings 583,407 526,040
Amount due for settlement within 12 months 69,370 &9.370
Amount due for setlerment after 12 months 514.037 456,670
Bammowings 583,407 524,040

The bank loans - semior debl, are secured by a charge over the assets of Intemational Enterainment
Finance Limited, o subsidiary of the Company and the maijority of its subsidiary undertakings. These foans
bedr interest at a rate which fluciuates in ine with LIBOR with @ margin ranging between 4.25% and 4.75%

and are governed by a senior finance agreement with requisite covenants.

The Group alio has loans from its shareholders totaliing £13%.2m, including Gocrued interest (2020; ENiI],
interest is non-cash paying and accrues at fixed rates ranging between 4.0% and 10.0%.

As at 52 week As ot 52 wesk
period ended pericd ended
27 March 28 March 2020

2021

£000 £000
Bonk loans - senior debt 427 370G 427 370
Bonk loans - other - 84,409
Sharehalder loans 139,179 -
Foir value adjusiment 18.84! 18,661
Unamaortised financing fees (1,803} (4.40C)
Bomowings 583,407 526,040

The Company does hot have any borrowings {2020; £nil).
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

20. Obligations ynder finance leuses - Group

Asab52  As gt 52 week
week perfod penod ended 28
ended 27 March 2020
March 2021
£'000 £000
Amaunt due within 12 months
Finonce feases 4211 4,270
IFRS 14 leases 12,182 15,204
Ohbligations unders lease liabiliies 16,393 12,474
Asat52  As ot 52 week
week period period ended 28
ended 27 Mairch 2020.
March 2021
£'000 £000
Amount due alter 12 monlhs ‘
Finance leases 84,556 86,629
IFRS 16 laasas 63,137 71,077
Obligations undar lease Rabllities 149,493 157,706

Financ e leases - Group

Minimum leqse payments

Presant value of minimum lease

payments
27 March 2021 28 March 2020 27 March 2021 28 March 2020
£00D £000 £000 £000
Within ane year 4,329 4,288 421 4,270
In the secord to fifth yaars 17,753 17,578 15,134 14,985
inclusive
After five vears 400,673 405,639 73,944 73,476
422,755 427,503 23,311 92.731

Less: fJuture finance charges {327,444) {334,439)

93,31 93,044 1.311 2.731
Unamortised finance costs {2.544) {2,145) {2,544) {2.165)
Prasent value of legse 50.747 30,879 10.747 90,568
abligations
Amount due within 12 months 4211 4270
Amount due after 12 months 84,558 86,629

90,747 90,879

The Group leases certain propertfies under fingnce lease arrangemeants. The average lease torm s 75 years.

the Group does not have the oplion fo purchase the properties for a nominal value of the end of the lease

terms, and the Group's obligations under the finance leasas are secured over the properties being leased.

Interast rates undadying all obligations under finance leases are implicit rates ranging from 5.3% to 538%

(2020: 5.3% to 5.8%)}.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

20. Obfigalions under financ e leases - Group {continved)

IFRS 16 lease Habllitles - Group

As al 52 week As ol 52 week
period ended period ended
27 March 2021 28 March

2020
£000 £000
Current 12,182 15,204
MNor-zurrent 63,137 oz
IFRS 14 leqse liakility 75,319 85,201

The weighted average incremental borawing rate opplied 1o measure lease liabilittes is 7.92%.

As ot 52 week

period ended 27

March 2021

Maturity analysis £000
No fater than 1 year 12,182
Later than | year and nat later than 5 years 29,958
Letter thers 5 years CCRFLY
75319

The Group does not face o significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities. Lease liabiities are
monitored within the Group's treasury function. Overall the variable payments constitute up to 5% of the
Group's entire lease payments. The group expects this ratic to remain censtant in future years, The variable
payments depend on ticke! sales and consequentiy on the overdll economic development over the next

few years, The total cash outflow for leases amounted (o £13.6m {2020: £13.6m).
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

21. Provisions - Group

Acquisition- Dilapidations Refundsand  Other Total

‘related Ticketing

provisions Provision
Group £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 €000
At 30 March 2019 11,341 433 - 712 12,886
Addilions - 2,611 11.241 - 13,852
Uilised/released £1.055) - - - {10558
Al 28 March 2020 : 10,284 3.244 11,241 712 25483
Additions - 226 377 I,142 3889
Forelgn exchonge adjustments {451) 20 - - {794)
Utised/released - - {10,804 (190] {12.777)
Al 27 March 2021 7,835 1490 812 1.484 15801

Acquisiion-related provisions relate to earn out agreements inrespect of the acquisitions of Mehr! Group.

The consideraticn is payable dependent on success factor Criteria over the naxt hwo yaors,

Dilapidations relate o the expeacled lavel of diopidations mainly related o central offices. The adequacy
of the provisions is periodically reviewed Yo ensure that they wil meet the final obligations.

The Campany has no provisions [2020: £nd),
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)
FOR 1HE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

22. Defemred tax ~ Group

Revaluation Accelerated Acquisition Tax losses Otherliming Total
of praperty tax ntangibles dilferences
depreciation

£000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000

At 30 March 2019 24,457 {654) 2,199 {2.442} {1.618] 21,942
Charge/{credit) to profit o loss 2.114 52 {73 {912} {5.993) {4.810)
At 28 March 2020 26,573 {402) 2,124 {3,354} {7.611} 17,132
Charge/icredit) to profit of loss {654] 842 {87} (13,182} 6,832 {6.24%)
At 27 March 2021 25979 240 2.00% {16,534} (77%) 10,883
27 March 28 March

2021 20

£000 E£0Q0

Dafarrad tox iobiities 28,198 28,699
Deterred tax assets (17,315} (11,567
Mol delaned hax liablilty 16,882 17,132

Recogrised deferred tax ossets are expected to be realised by profits generated in future years in each

relavant temitory,

The Company has no deferred tax {2020; £nil),

23. Share caplial - Group and Company

Number of £1 Nomina!
Ordinary shares value
£000

Authorised, Issued and fully paid:
At 30 March 2317 and 28 March 2020 262,167 252
Net proceeds of shares issued 151,240 152
At 27 March 2021 413,427 %14

On 14 Cctober 2020 an additional 85.500 Ordinary shares were issued in the Company with a nominal vaive

of £1 eqch for & total consideration of £86k.

On 25 March 2021 an additional 5,761 Ordinary shares were issued in the Company with a nominal value

of £1 eqch for o total consideration of £&4k.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued)

FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

24. Noles o the cash flow statement

Net cash generated by operaling aclivies

For the 52 week For the 52

pertod ended  waek period

27 Morch 2021 ended 28

March 202G

£'000 £000

COpearating {loss)/profit {94.409) 2,222
Impaiment of assets - 14,930
Amaonrtisation of intangible fixed assels 1,988 £,974
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 26,615 21,439
Depreciation charge for right-of-use assels - buldings 8,801 8.759
Sharo of resulls of associates and joint ventures {24%) {702
{Decrease)fincreqase in provisions {9.4682) 2.92359
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital {67.134) 58.581
Decrease/fincrease) in inventories 53¢ {125)
Decreqsa inreceivables 24,081 1.8IS
{Decreasel/increase in payables {68,147) 8,964
Cash flow fronn aperaling qollvilies {110.653) &9.237
Corporate tax received/|{paid) 2,137 17.002)
Net cash flow from operaling aclivities {108,524) 62,235

ao
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

24, Notesto cosh llow statement (continved)

Net debt reconcliailon
As at 52 week As at 52 waek
petlod ended 27 pariod ended 28
March 2021 March 2020
£000 £000
Bank loans - senior debt {358,000 {358,000}
Bank loans - revolving credit faciity [69.370] {69.370
Total senlor debt (427,370) (427 370)
Foir vaiue adjusiment/ unamortised financing 116,258} {14,247}
fees
Bark loans - other - {84,409)
Shareholder kpans (139179 -
Obligatians vnder finance l2ases (146,086) {177.380]
“Tolal dabt (749,493} (703,220}
Cush and cash equivalents 185,432 139.065
Neot debt (544,081) (584,155)
Movement In net debt
Cash at bank Debt Total
£'000 £000 £'000
Net debt as ot 28 March 2020 139,045 (703,220} (544,155)
Cash flows 48,339 [38.404] 2.933
foreign exchange adjustments {LY72) - {1.¥72)
Cther non-cash movement - {7.857) (7.867)
Neat debt as at 27 March 2021 185,432 (747.493) (564.061)
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERICD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

25, Contingent liabilitles

A corporote cross guarantee of the senior debt exists between the Compony and the majority of its
subsidiary undertakings. The senior delbst is secured by a debenture over the majority of the assets of the
Group. The Group diso has in place various guardantess acress its portfolio, which are typical of commercial
and property rental agreements.

25, Conlingent awvats

At the bolance sheet date the Group had applied to the Gemman government for COVID-17 reiated gront
income. Al that date management deemed it probable thal the application would be successful, with

expected future income of €10.8 mifion.

27. Commitments

Capitat commiiments

Al the balance sheet dale, the Group had material contraciual commitments for capital expenditure of
Enil (2020: £nil).

28. Financlal sk management

Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to maximise shareholder value whilst safeguarding the
Group's ability te continue as a going concern. In common with other private equity portfolio companies,
the Group comies a high level of net debt compared to equity. Total capitatis calculated as total equity os
shown in the consolidated statement of position, pius net bank debl. Net bank debt is calculated as the
total of long and short tenm bomowings as shown in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, |ess
cash and cash equivalents.

Financlat risk management objectives

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including cumency risk, interest rate sk, credit
risk and liquidity risk.

The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on minimising potential adverse effects on the
Group's finoncial performance.

Descapfions of the financial risks and how these are monaged and mitigated are included in the Strategic
Report onpages 11 and 12.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conlinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

28, Financial risk management {conlinued)

The below table demonstrates the sensitivily to a regsonably possible change in interest rates and foreign
exchange rates,

Financlal risks Sensitivity analyzls

Intersst rate risk An ncreasefdecreqse of one percenfoge point in LBOR would
ncrease/decrease the Group’s loss by £4,087,000 {2020: £5,117.000}.

Foreign exchange Had GBP strengthenad against the US doliar by an addifional 1% during the
fisk pericd, assuming o other varigbles remained constant, the Group's 1oss
would have decreased by £288.000 (2020: £191.000).

Had GEBP sirengthened qgainst the Euro by on additional 1% duhing the
period, assuming ol other varables remained constant, the Group's 105
would have decreased by £110.000 {2020: increase of £352,000).

Liquidity

The following tables detail the Group's contractual maturties tor its financiat liabifities with agreed
repayment periods. The tables hove been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash ows of financial
linbilities and bosed on the eariest dote on which the Group con be required 1o pay. The table Inciudes
both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest Bows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount s derived from interest rate curves at the balance sheet date. The Group is not party to any

derivative contracts,

Less than 1
vaar 1-5 years 5+ yoors Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
27 March 2021
Trade and other payables 72,865 - - T2B4S
Finance legse liakilities 4,329 172,753 400,673 422,755
Bomowings 62,370 514,037 - 5483.407
Tolal cash-seftled lickiilies 146,564 531,790 400,473 1.079.027
28 March 2020
Trade and other payables 115,104 - - 115,104
Finance lease igbiitles 4,286 17.578 405,639 427,503
Bomowings 89,370 456,670 - 524,040
total cash-seified lchiliiles 188,762 474,248 405,637 1,068,64Y

The Company has na relevont cash-setiled assets orliabilities ond so has no fiquidity risk.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

27. Financlat Instuments

Cotagories of financial instruments

Cash and Financial Tolat
receivables Gablities ot
omortised cost
£000 £'000 £'000

27 March 2021
Cash and cash equivalents 185432 - 185,432
Trade and cther receivables 30340 - 37,3460
Financlal assels 224,792 - 224,792
Trade and other payatles - 74,8454 74844
Bomowings - 583,407 583.407
Obligations vnder finonce leases - 146,066 166,084
Financial llablitias - 824 339 824,339
Net financial assels/(llabies) 224,792 (824,33%) {599,547}
28 March 2020 S
Cash and caosh equivalents 139,085 - 139,048
Trade and cther receivables 62,554 - 62,554
Finonclal assels 201,617 - 201,617
Financlal llabiiities
Trade and ather payables . 117,210 117,210
Borrowings - 526,040 326,040
Obligations under inance leases - 177.180 177,180
Financial llabilliies - 820,430 820430
Nat financial assets/{lablities) 201,619 (820,430} {618.811)

Fakr valve measurements

The directors consider that the camying amounts of financial assets ond financiat liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the financial statements approximate to thair fair values.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 202}

30. Contralling poarty

The Company's uitimote parent company is IE Luxco 3.a.r) (Luxembourg), which is controlied by Providence
Equity Partners VIl A LP [Cayman Blands) and Providence VI Glabal Hotdings LP [Cayman klands). The

Diecton consider these parties fo be the confroling party.

31. Related party transactions

Group
Transactions with directors and key rngnagement personned

Remuneration paid to the directors or other, who are considered 1o be key management personnel, is

disclosed in note &.
Trading fronsachions

Duwing the perod, the Group provided production-relatad services to associates and joint ventures of
£328 562 (2020: £51.875). Al the end of the period, balances of £1.951.044 (2020: £115,585) were owed to
the Greup by the associales and joint ventures, These balances are unsecured and will be setlled
pericdically over the cowse of the preduction. There are curently no provisions relating to these balances.

These transactions have been conducted ot arm's length.
32. Events after balance sheet date

©On 10 Decembear 2020, #£HL US Holdings, Inc. entered into o sale and purchase agreement for the
ocquisition of Broadway Son Francisco, LLC ond Nederlander Detroit, LLC for considerafion of £173.9

millian. On 29 March 2021 the candilions were met to define the acquisition date of this tronsaction.

This acquisition adds two theatres in San Froncisco and three in Detroit to the Group®™s portfolio of owned

and cperated venues.

Subsequent to the period end the Group receaived €5.4 million of COVID-1? related govemmeni grant
ncome from the German government.

85

Sensitivity: intemal Use



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

33, Subsidiary entlties, associates and joint ventures and invesiments
Svbsidiaries

100% of the ordinary share capital of ail subsiciaries is owned direchy orindirectly unless otherwise indicated.
Where indicated, shareholdings are effeclive ownership percentages as hold by the parent jie. f a
subsidiary halding company is 0% owned, and owns 100% of ol its subsidiaries, all subsidiaries are shown as

being P08 owned].

incorporated in United Kingdom

Al subsidiaries have taken the $479a exemption from audit under porent company guarantee.

Subsidiary undertaking %% Shares held

Direct investments
Intemational Entertainment Midco Limited!
indirect Investments

AKA CP Limited?

AKA Group Lmited®

AKA NYC Limiteg?

AKA Promaotions Limited?

Principal activity

Holding company

Marketing setvices
Holding company
Marketing services
Markeling services

ATG Entestainment Limitec? Holding cempany

ATG London Limited® Theatre aperator and
ticketing company

ATG Management Limited? Dormnont

ATG Productions Limiled?® Productioncompany

Aylesbury Woterside Thealre Limited? thealre operolor

Churchill Theatre Bromley Limited? Thealre operator

CP Studlio Limited? Markelting services

Digital Media Sarvces UK Limited? Digicl media services

Encore Intematiocnal Merchondise Limited? Merchandiser

First Fomily Entertainment LLP2 Production company

G5 Lashmar Limited? $0% Domant

Glasgow Theatas Umited? Theatre gperator

Highlard Fling Japan Limited?® Dormant

International Entertainmeant Finance Limited?!
Infermational Erterntainment investments

Holding company
Heolding comparny

Limited*

Landon Theatre Club Limited? Darmant

London Tumshe Limited® Oormmonk

Miltor Keynes Thegtre Limited? Theatre cperator
New Wimbledon Theatro Limited?® Theatra pperator
Playhouse Theotre Limited? Theatre operator
Richmond Theatre Limited? Theatre aperator
Savoy Theatre Group Limited? Holding company
Savoy Thealre Holdings Limited? Domaont

Saveoy Theatre Limiteg? Theatre operator
Screenstage Limited?® Damant
Screenstage Productions Limited? Oomant

Smart Plays Limited?® Dormant

Sonia Friedman Productions Limitea? Production company
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

33. Subsidicary entities, assaclates and joint vertures and investments {continued)

SFP Dreams Limited?®

SFP Shows Limited?

SFP Sunny Limited?

Stoke-on-Trent Theatres Limited®

The ambassador Entertainment Group
Limited?

The Ambassador Theatre Group Fimiters
The Ambassador Theatre Group {Venues)
Limited?

The Ambassador Theaire Group Oversens
Heldings Limited?

Theatre Management (Holdings) Limited?
Theatre Monagement Limited®

Tha Duke of York's Theatre Umited?

The Ticket Machine Group Limited?
Theatre Royal Brighton Limited?

Walter's House Limited?

waking Tumstyle Limited?

incorporated In USA

Subsidiary undernking

ACE Theatdcal Group, LLC7

Arts Center Enferprises, LLC?

Agxts Center Enterprises — Brooklyn, LLC?

Afts Center Enlermprises — New Qdsans, LLCY
Arts Cenler Enferprises - Sugar Land, LLCY
Ambassador Theatre Group — NY, LLC»

ATG Colonigl, 1LC2

AIG San Francisco

ATG Tickets US, LLC?

Creative Partnership LA, inc'?

Encore Merchandising, inc!s

Huclson Thealre, LLCS

IEHL. US Holdings Inc?

Kings Theatre Developer, LLC?

Kings Theatre Manager, LLCS

Lyric Theatre, LLCS

Majestic Presents LLCT

Saenger Aggregotor Leverage Lender, LLC?
Soenger Theatre Developer, Ings

Saenger Theatre Manager, LLC?

Soenger Theatie Master Tenant LLC

Saenger Iheatre Partnership, Lid?

SFP-NY, LLCY

Saenger Theatre Redevelopment Companiy LLTCT
Sundance Productions, inc?

The Ambassader Theatre Group US Holdings, Inc®

Sensitivity: Iternal Lise
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% Shores held

Production company
Production compony
Production compony
Theatre operator
Holding cornpany

Holding and productions
Thegtre operator

Holding company

Holding company
Theatre operator
Theatre operator
Tickeding agency
Theatre operator
Thealre operater
Theatre operator

Principal aclivity

Management services
Theals operator
Theatre operator
Theatre operater
Venue operator
Production company
Venue operator
Venue opearator
Ticketing agency
Morketing services
Dormant

Thegtre operator
Hoiding company
Venue daveloper
Managing member
Theatre operator
Thaatre operator
Financing company
Venue developer
Monaging member
Theatre operator
Dormrant

Frocuction company
Venue developer
Production company
Holding company



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

33, Subsidiary enlities, aisociates and Joint ventures and Invesiments {continved}

Incorperafed in Germany

The following subsidiaries have elected to apply the exemplion availoble under §244, section 3 of the

German Commercial Code and have not preparad and published financial statements under German

GAAF because they are included os fully consolidated subsidiaries in the ATG Group financiol statements.

Subksidlary underaking

BB Entertainment Holding GmbH*®
BB Group GmbH?

BB Promotion GrmbH?

Bodyguard Verwaltungs GmbH™

Bodyguard pMusical GmibH & Co kG

ESMS GmibH?

Fandangoe Musical GmibH?

On Stage Froduclions GmbH '

Mehr-B8 Entertainment GmbH1s

Deutscho Eintrittskarden TKS GrmbH'*

Beutscing Kintrittskarten TKS Service Center GmbH'*
Cirty Dancing Toumes Produktions GmbH & Co. KGH
Mehr-B8 Theoter GmbH o

MMS Mehrl Marketing & Soles GmbH'™s

tusical-Dome Verwaltungs- und Belriebsgessliscoft
miH!?

starignt Express GmbH'®
HP-Theater Praduktionsgeselschaft miboH's
Dirty Dancing Gastspiel Verwaitungs GmbH3

incorparated in Australic

Svbsidiary undertaking
AXA Fromotions [Austraiia) Pty i1d"!
Erncore Merchandise {Australia) Pry Limited !

The Ambassador theatre Group Asia Pacific Pty
Limited'2

Associates and Soint Yenhures

Name Inconporated

A 5SS, Concerts & Fromotion GmbH
HP West End Limiledt

JB UK Tour #l Procuchons Lid?

ISM Show AGH

Germony
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Swilzerland
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% Shares held

% Shares held

Frinclpal aclivity

Holding company
Hclc_iing!Munqg ement
services company
Promotions company
Holding company
Production company
Marketing services
Production company
Production company
Holding company
Tickeling company
Ticketing company
Praduction company
Theater operator
Marketing services
Theater operator

Preduction company
Production company
Holding company

Princlpal achivity

markating services
Dormant
Production Company

% Shares held

49.8%
25%
0%
S0%

Principal aclivity

Proguction company
Praduchion company
Production company
Proguction compony



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE 52 WEEK PERICD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

33, Subsidiary entlties, associates and joint ventures and investments {conlinved)

Cther invesiments

Name incorporated % Shares held Principol aclivity
Cieven Investmenis Lid United Kingdom % Production company
Kings Thadatre Redevelopment Company  USA 1.08% Venue developer
LLE

Maerlin Entertainments pic United Kingdom 0.00% Entertainment group
Stageservice Frankfurtam Main GmibH Gemany 0% Producticn company

' These comparies have a registered office of 28 5t. George Street, London WIS 2FA

These companies have a ragistered office of L 15 Shaftesbury Avenue, Cambridge Cirgus, London WC2H 8AF
3These companias have o registersd office of 20 Hoor Alexonder House, Church Path, Woking, Surrey
GUZI 4E)

+This company has a registerad office of 5% Floor, 8% New Bond Street, London W13 1DA

SThese companyes have ¢ registered office of Capital Services, Inc.. 1675 South State 5t, Ste B, Dover,

DE 1991

8These companies have d registered office of Capitol Corporate Saervices, Inc., 8550 United Plaza Bidg. [t Ste
305, Bafon Rouge, LA 70809

TThese companies have g reqistered office of Capitol Corportle Sarvices, Inc., 208 E. 9th 81, Ste 1300,
Austin, TX 78701

BThis company has aregistered office of Filelon, Lasky, Aslan, Couture. & Garmise, Richard Garmise, 551
St Ave #6085, New York, NY 10174

*These companies have a registered office of RontgensiraBe 7, 681487 Mannheim

WThese companies have o registered office of Landshergsirale 28, 50678 Koin

"These companies have d registered office of Suite &.1, Level 6, 3 Bowen Crescent, Melboumae, Victorio
3004, Australia

121his company has a registered office of Suite 3, Level 1, 4 - 1D Bay Streel. Double Bay, NSW 2028

11his cornpany haos a registered office of CormenstraBe 12, 8032 Zurich

4 This cormnpany has o ragisterad office of Komoedienstr, 11, 50667 K3in

$This company has a registered office of Ekeather Str, 30, 40233 DUsseldarf

8 This company has g registered office of BanksstraBe 28, 20097 Harnburg

17 This company has o registered office of Goldgasse 1, 506468 Kéin

15This company has a registered office of Stadionning 24, 44791 Bochum

1*This company has a registered office of 1800 Post Cak Bivd. 4 Boulevard Place, Suite 450, Houston, Texas
77056

#This company has aregistered office of 1313 N Market St.. Ste 5100 Wilmingtan, DE 19801
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